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PART | - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We refer to Highwoods Properties, Inc. as the “Canyy’ Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership as ti@pérating Partnershipthe
Company’s common stock as “Common Stock” or “Comn&iares,” the Company’s preferred stock as “Prefe@tock” or Preferre
Shares,” the Operating Partnership’s common patiigrinterests as “Common Units,” the Operatingtrigaships preferred partnerst
interests as “Preferred Units” and in-service prbee (excluding forsale residential condominiums) to which the Compang/or th
Operating Partnership have title and 100.0% owmgmights as the “Wholly Owned Properties.” Refares to “we” and “our’mean th
Company and the Operating Partnership, collectjugijess the context indicates otherwise.

The partnership agreement provides that the Opgr&artnership will assume and pay when due, ortngise the Company for paym
of, all costs and expenses relating to the ownprsinid operations of, or for the benefit of, the @prg Partnership. The partners
agreement further provides that all expenses o€tirapany are deemed to be incurred for the beotefite Operating Partnership.

Certain information contained herein is presentedfaluly 19, 2012the latest practicable date for financial infotima prior to the filing
of this Quarterly Report.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Unaudited and in thousands, except share anchpee slata)

Assets:
Real estate assets, at cost:
Land
Buildings and tenant improvements
Development in process
Land held for development

Less-accumulated depreciation
Net real estate assets
For-sale residential condominiums
Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $3,262 $81%48, respectively
Mortgages and notes receivable, net of allowan&ld8 and $61, respectively
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofwwoce of $866 and $1,294, respectively
Investments in and advances to unconsolidatededi
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdated amortization of $70,572 and $62,319, respelsti
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Total Assets
Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnership and Equity:
Mortgages and notes payable
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiiedbil
Financing obligations
Total Liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Noncontrolling interests in the Operating Partngrsh
Equity:
Preferred Stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 awtbdrshares;

8.625% Series A Cumulative Redeemable PreferredeSiiliguidation preference $1,000 per share), 29,0
shares issued and outstanding

Common Stock, $.01 par value, 200,000,000 authdshares;

75,619,288 and 72,647,697 shares issued and alitsganespectively
Additional paid-in capital
Distributions in excess of net income availabledommon stockholders
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total Stockholders’ Equity
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiliates

Total Equity

Total Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in ti@perating Partnership and Equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.

June 30, December 31,
2012 2011
366,92! $ 364,02:
3,117,73 3,078,30:
6,094 —
102,48: 105,20t
3,593,23 3,547,53
(913,019 (877,38)
2,680,21! 2,670,15
2,43¢ 4,751
36,75! 50,33t
6,521 11,18¢
20,751 26,66¢
21,88 30,09:
17,05¢ 18,60(
113,69! 104,28
77,08¢ 100,36
126,68( 127,77:
41,90: 36,78:
3,144,99: $ 3,180,99.
1,823,121 $ 1,903,21:
137,10¢ 148,82:
30,82 31,44
1,991,05! 2,083,47
124,88( 110,65!
29,071 29,071
75€ 72€
1,884,39: 1,803,99
(878,98, (845,85))
(20,779 (5,739
1,024,46: 982,21:
4,59: 4,64¢
1,029,05! 986,85¢
3,144,99. $ 3,180,99:
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income

(Unaudited and in thousands, except per share asjoun

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended June
June 30, 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Rental and other revenues $ 130,73 $ 114,65 $ 258,76¢ $ 226,98:
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 47,08¢ 39,93! 92,28¢ 79,83¢
Depreciation and amortization 40,27¢ 32,684 78,10¢ 65,62
General and administrative 8,90( 7,97¢ 18,57 15,77
Total operating expenses 96,26t 80,59: 188,96¢ 161,23(
Interest expense:
Contractual 23,64: 22,94( 47,59! 45,37
Amortization of deferred financing costs 90C 821 1,80z 1,642
Financing obligations (48) 14€ (96) 437
24,49 23,901 49,297 47,45(
Other income:
Interest and other income 1,737 1,89¢ 3,967 3,772
Losses on debt extinguishment (979 (24) (979) (24)
764 1,87¢ 2,99/ 3,74¢
Income from continuing operations before dispositia of property and condominiums and equity in earnimgs
of unconsolidated affiliates 10,73¢ 12,02¢ 23,49¢ 22,04¢
Gains on disposition of property — 20C — 20C
Gains on for-sale residential condominiums 11C 11€ 17t 154
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 1,50¢ 1,35¢ 1,34¢ 2,82(
Income from continuing operations 12,351 13,69t 25,02( 25,22
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations 75€ 73¢ 1,291 1,654
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations 1,38t — 6,51¢ —
2,141 73¢ 7,81( 1,65¢
Net income 14,49¢ 14,43« 32,83( 26,871
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeem the Operating Partnership (68€) (623) (1,519 (1,130
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeem consolidated affiliates (223 (182) (407) (305)
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (1,629 (1,259 (3,299
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption/repurchageowes carrying value — (1,895 — (1,895
Net income available for common stockholders $ 1296: $ 10,11 $ 29,65t $  20,24¢
Earnings per Common Share — basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 0.1t $ 0.1 $ 03C $ 0.2¢€
Income from discontinued operations available fimmon stockholders 0.0z 0.01 0.1C 0.02Z
Net income available for common stockholders $ 017 $ 014 $ 04C $ 0.2¢
Weighted average Common Shares outstanding — basic 74,662 72,211 73,74¢ 72,01¢
Earnings per Common Share — diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 0.1t $ 0.1 $ 03C $ 0.2€
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 0.0z 0.01 0.1C 0.0z
Net income available for common stockholders $ 017 $ 014 $ 04C $ 0.2¢
Weighted average Common Shares outstanding —dilute 78,521 76,191 77,60 75,981
Dividends declared per Common Share $ 042t $ 042t $ 0.85( $ 0.85(
Net income available for common stockholders:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 10,92: $ 9,41C $ 22,22¢ $ 18,67:
Income from discontinued operations available finmon stockholders 2,03¢ 70z 7,43C 1,571

Net income available for common stockholders $ 12096 $ 1011: $ 29,65¢ $  20,24¢




See accompanying notes to consolidated financa#tsients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended June

June 30, 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Comprehensive income/(loss):

Net income $ 1449t $ 1443« $ 3283( $ 26,87
Other comprehensive income/(loss):

Unrealized gains/(losses) on tax increment finap&iond 29¢ (336 58¢ (471)

Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges (7,48)) — (7,087 —

Amortization of cash flow hedges 782 (29) 1,45¢ (59
Total other comprehensive loss (6,409 (365) (5,045 (529
Total comprehensive income 8,09t 14,06¢ 27,78t 26,34¢

Less-comprehensive (income) attributable to nomodimg interests (909) (805) (1,920 (1,435
Comprehensive income attributable to the Company $ 7,18¢ $ 13,26« $ 2586 § 249

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Equity

(Unaudited and in thousands, except share amounts)

Series A Distributions in
Cumulative Non-Controlling Excess of Net
Redeemable Additional Accumulated Interests in Income Available
Number of Common Preferred Paid-In Other Compre- Consolidated for Common
Common Shares Stock Shares Capital hensive Loss Affiliates Stockholders Total
Balance at December 31, 2011 72,647,69 $ 726 % 29,077 $1,80399 $ (5,73 $ 4,646 $ (845,85) $ 986,85¢
Issuances of Common Stock, net 2,794,341 28 — 91,80¢ — — — 91,83¢
Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock 18,36¢ — — 631 — — — 631
Dividends on Common Stock — — — — — (62,787 (62,787
Dividends on Preferred Stock — — — — — (1,259 (1,259
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opierg
Partnership to fair value — — (16,509 — — — (16,509
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated
affiliates — — — = (460) = (460)
Issuances of restricted stock 158,88! — — — — — — —
Share-based compensation expense 2 — 4,457 — — — 4,45¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intdee the
Operating Partnership — — — — — (1,519 (1,519
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteees
consolidated affiliates — — — — 407 (407) —
Comprehensive income:
Net income — — — — — 32,83( 32,83(
Other comprehensive loss — — — (5,04%) — — (5,04%)
Total comprehensive income 27,78
Balance at June 30, 2012 7561928 $ 75€ % 29,077  $1,88439. $ (10,779  $ 459: $ (878,989 $  1,029,05!
Series A Series B Distributions in
Cumulative Cumulative Non-Controlling Excess of Net
Redeemable Redeemable Additional Accumulated Interests in Income Available
Number of Common Preferred Preferred Paid-In Other Compre- Consolidated for Common
Common Shares Stock Shares Shares Capital hensive Loss Affiliates Stockholders Total
Balance at December 31, 2010 71,690,48 $ 717 % 29,09: % 52,50 $1,766,880 $ (3,64 $ 446(  $ (761,78%) $  1,088,22
Issuances of Common Stock, net 556,65: 6 — — 16,97¢ — — — 16,98¢
Conversions of Common Units to
Common Stock 18,731 — — — 63E — — — 63E
Dividends on Common Stock — — — — — — (61,069 (61,06¢)
Dividends on Preferred Stock — — — — — — (3,299 (3,299
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in
the Operating Partnership to fair
value — — — (6,957 — — — (6,957
Distributions to noncontrolling interests
in consolidated affiliates — — — — — (319 — (319
Issuances of restricted stock 133,55: — — — — — — — —
Redemptions/repurchases of Preferred
Stock — (5 (52,500 1,89¢ — — (1,895 (52,50%)
Share-based compensation expense 1 — — 3,452 — — — 3,457
Net (income) attributable to
noncontrolling interests in the
Operating Partnership — — — — — — (1,130 (1,130
Net (income) attributable to
noncontrolling interests in
consolidated affiliates — — — — — 30¢E (305) —
Comprehensive income:
Net income — — — — — — 26,871 26,871
Other comprehensive loss — — — — (529 — — (529)
Total comprehensive income 26,34¢
Balance at June 30, 2011 72,399,42  $ 724 $ 29,087 % — $1,78288 % 417) % 4,44¢  $ (802,60 $  1,010,36:

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of lease incentives and acquisitiolated intangible assets and liabilities
Share-based compensation expense
Allowance for losses on accounts and accrued $iirdiige rents receivable
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Amortization of cash flow hedges
Losses on debt extinguishment
Net gains on disposition of property
Gains on for-sale residential condominiums
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Changes in financing obligations
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accrued straight-line rents receivable
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheritiedbil
Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities:
Investment in acquired real estate and relateagiltée assets, net of cash acquired
Investment in development in process
Investment in tenant improvements and deferredrigasosts
Investment in building improvements
Net proceeds from disposition of real estate assets
Net proceeds from disposition of for-sale residdrdondominiums
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated afities
Repayments of mortgages and notes receivable
Investments in and advances to unconsolidatedzaéd
Changes in restricted cash and other investingites
Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities:
Dividends on Common Stock
Redemptions/repurchases of Preferred Stock
Dividends on Preferred Stock
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in the@ating Partnership
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates
Proceeds from the issuance of Common Stock
Costs paid for the issuance of Common Stock
Repurchase of shares related to tax withholdings
Borrowings on revolving credit facility
Repayments of revolving credit facility
Borrowings on mortgages and notes payable

Repayments of mortgages and notes payable

Six Months Ended June 30,

2012 2011
32,83( 26,87:
79,11¢ 67,27¢

18C 96¢
4,45¢ 3,45:
53¢ 1,02¢
1,80z 1,64z
1,45¢ (58)
972 24
(6,519 (200)
(175) (154)
(1,346) (2,820
(584) (245)
2,22F 2,162
7,29¢ (1,829
(3,15¢) (644)
(9,415) (6,09¢)
(16,35 (3,799
93,32¢ 87,59t
= (7,762
(1,539 (2,599)
(43,85 (28,456
(19,759 (5,63)
19,89¢ 2,06¢
2,49; 2,401
901 632
1,542 23t
(2,750) (39,40%)
4,031 (395)
(39,029 (78,919
(62,78 (61,069
— (52,50
(1,259 (3,299
(3,15¢) (3,215)
(460) (319
95,28¢ 16,98
(1,316 =
(2,13) —
106,30 124,70(
(392,80() (79,300
225,00 200,00
(19,359 (153,52)



Payments on financing obligations

Additions to deferred financing costs and otheaficing activities

Net cash used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gberio

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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(38) =
(2,245) (2,109
(58,965 (13,649
(4,66) (4,967
11,18¢ 14,20
6,521 9,23¢
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéhfincing activities:

Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges

Conversion of Common Units to Common Stock

Changes in accrued capital expenditures

Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets

Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing atehsing costs

Unrealized gains on marketable securities of noaifipd deferred compensation plan
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opieig Partnership to fair value
Unrealized gains/(losses) on tax increment finaméiond

Reduction of advances to unconsolidated affiliagdsted to acquisition activities

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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Six Months Ended June 30,

2012 2011
$ 48,06 $ 44,94¢
Six Months Ended June 30,
2012 2011
$ (7,087 $ =
631 63t
(2,44% 1,52¢
28,62¢ 23,35
8,76¢ 8,24
21¢ 21C
16,50! 6,957
58¢ (471)
26,00( —
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per shre data)
(Unaudited)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accaiing Policies
Description of Business

Highwoods Properties, Inc., together with its cdigsded subsidiaries (the “Company”), is a fullydégrated, self-administered and self-
managed equity real estate investment trust (“REif&t provides leasing, management, developmenstruction and other customedatec
services for its properties and for third parti#&e Company conducts virtually all of its activitiehrough Highwoods Realty Limit
Partnership (the “Operating Partnership”). At J80e 2012 , the Company and/or the Operating Pafi@mwholly owned: 304 iservice
office, industrial and retail properties, comprgi29.5 million square feet; nine for-sale resid@ntondominiums; 58&cres of undevelop
land suitable for future development, of which %tBes are considered core assets; and one offipenty under development.

The Company is the sole general partner of the &iper Partnership. At June 30, 201the Company owned all of the Preferred L
and 75.2 million , or 95.3% , of the Common Unitstie Operating Partnership. Limited partners,uditig one officer and twdirectors o
the Company, own the remaining 3.7 milli@@mmon Units. In the event the Company issues st@r€ommon Stock, the net proceeds
contributed to the Operating Partnership in exckdog additional Common Units. Generally, the OfiagpPartnership is required to rede
each Common Unit at the request of the holder tdide cash equal to the value of one share ofGhmpany’s Common Stock, $ 0.@4l
value, based on the average of the market pricthé1t0Otrading days immediately preceding the notice datuch redemption, provided t|
the Company at its option may elect to acquiresargh Common Units presented for redemption for casine share of Common Stock.
Common Units owned by the Company are not redeemdhiring the six months ended June 30, 2012 Cibvapany redeemeti8,36¢
Common Units for a like number of shares of ComrBtock. The redemptions, in conjunction with thegeeds from issuances of Comr
Stock contributed to the Operating Partnershipxichange for additional Common Units, increasedpeentage of Common Units ow!
by the Company from 95.1% at December 31, 201518% at June 30, 2012 .

Common Stock Offerings

The Company has entered into equity sales agresmsaifit various financial institutions to offer asdll, from time to time, shares of
Common Stock by means of ordinary brokers' trams@ston the New York Stock Exchange or otherwismatket prices prevailing at 1
time of sale, at prices related to prevailing mapces or at negotiated prices or as otherwiseeahwith any of the institutions. During
three and six months ended June 30, 2012 , the @wyripsued 1,836,976 and 2,622,4hares, respectively, of Common Stock under-
agreements at an average gross sales price of7/8 38Bd $33.4%er share, respectively, raising net proceedst aftles commissions a
expenses, of $ 61.0 million and $86.4 million petively.

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are preparednformity with accounting principles generafigcepted in the United States
America (“GAAP”). Our Consolidated Balance SheeDaicember 31, 201vas recast from previously reported amounts taecefin ree
estate and other assets, net, held for sale throgenies which qualified as held for sale durihg three months ended June 30, 200
Consolidated Statements of Income for the threeséndhonths ended June 30, 204ére recast from previously reported amounts tect
in discontinued operations the operations for thmeperties that qualified for discontinued operasi. Prior period amounts related to ca
expenditures in our Consolidated Statements of €shs have been reclassified to conform to theesurperiod presentation.

Our Consolidated Financial Statements include tper&ting Partnership, wholly owned subsidiaries #iode entities in which we he
the controlling financial interest. All intercompatransactions and accounts have been eliminateduie 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011
we had involvement with no entities that we conelthtb be variable interest entities.

10
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre data)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accaiing Policies — Continued

The unaudited interim consolidated financial stagate and accompanying unaudited consolidated fiagimformation, in the opinion
management, contain all adjustments (including mbmacurring accruals) necessary for a fair predent of our financial position, results
operations and cash flows. We have omitted centaias and other information from the interim coraikd financial statements presente
this Quarterly Report on Form 1D-as permitted by SEC rules and regulations. Ti@ssesolidated Financial Statements should be re
conjunction with our 2011 Annual Report on FormKLO-

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemémntaccordance with GAAP requires us to make edémand assumptions that af
the amounts reported in the consolidated finarstetements and accompanying notes. Actual resuligl differ from those estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

As a result of adopting certain new or amended @tiog pronouncements in the first quarter of 204€,have enhanced our disclos
of assets and liabilities measured at fair valu elacted to continue use of credit valuation adjesits on a net basis by counterparty as
of the calculation to determine the fair value of derivatives. Our disclosures now include: (gngicant transfers between Levels 1 and
the fair value hierarchy, if any; (2) additionalatitative and qualitative information regarding faalue measurements categorized as Le
of the fair value hierarchy; and (3) the hierardtgssification for items whose fair value is notasled on our Consolidated Balance St
but was disclosed previously in our Notes to Cadstéd Financial Statements. Additionally, we hawesented comprehensive income
separate financial statement entitled ConsolidStatements of Comprehensive Income.

2. Real Estate Assets
Acquisitions

During the second quarter of 2012 , we acquired@@&3D0square foot office property in Cary, NC from our BLjoint venture for a
agreed upon value of $26.0 million by reducinglihtance of the advance due to us from the jointuren

Dispositions

During the second quarter of 2012 , we sold a rae-office property in Pinellas County, FL for gsgsroceeds of $ 9.5 millionWe
recorded gain on disposition of discontinued openatof $ 1.4 million related to this disposition.

During the first quarter of 2012, we sold 96 vacaarttal residential units in Kansas City, MO foosgg proceeds of $11.0 milliariWVe
recorded gain on disposition of discontinued openatof $5.1 million related to this disposition.

3. Mortgages and Notes Receivable

The following table sets forth our mortgages antbaoeceivable:

June 30, December 31,

2012 2011
Seller financing (first mortgages) $ 15,85 $ 17,18(
Less allowance — —
15,85 17,18(
Promissory notes 1,321 1,481
Less allowance (119) (62)
1,20 1,42(
Mortgages and notes receivable, net $ 17,05¢  § 18,60(
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre data)

3. Mortgages and Notes Receivable - Continued

Our mortgages and notes receivable consist priynafikeller financing issued in conjunction withandisposition transactions in 20
This seller financing is evidenced by first mortgagecured by the assignment of rents and the lyimdereal estate assets. We evaluatt
collectibility of the receivables by monitoring theasing statistics and market fundamentals ofetlassets. As of June 30, 201Be paymen
on both mortgages receivable were current and tvere no other indications of impairment on theeieables. We may be required to t
impairment charges in the future if and to the eithe underlying collateral diminishes in value.

The following table sets forth our notes receivallewance, which relates only to promissory notes:

Three Months Ended June

30, Six Months Ended June 30
2012 2011 2012 2011
Beginning notes receivable allowance $ 12z % 497 $ 61 $ 86¢
Bad debt expense — 162 — 184
Recoveries/write-offs/other (4) (42) 57 (439)
Total notes receivable allowance $ 11€ 8 617 $ 11€ 8 617

4. Investments in and Advances to Affiliates

Unconsolidated Affiliates

We have equity interests of up to 50.@9various joint ventures with unrelated third estand a secured debt interest in one of -
joint ventures, as described below. The followiaglé sets forth the combined, summarized inconmterstnts for our unconsolidated jc
ventures on the purchase accounting basis:

Three Months Ended June

30, Six Months Ended June 30
2012 2011 2012 2011
Income Statements:
Rental and other revenues $ 26,04¢ $ 24,77¢ $ 50,86¢ $ 49,99¢
Expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 12,66¢ 10,77 24,08: 22,77
Depreciation and amortization 5,91¢ 6,29t 12,48 12,91
Impairment of real estate assets — — 7,18( —
Interest expense 5,26 5,85¢ 11,097 11,86¢
Total expenses 23,85: 22,927 54,84: 47,54
Income/(loss) before disposition of properties 2,19 1,852 (3,979 2,44¢
Gains on disposition of properties 6,27¢ — 6,27¢ —
Net income $ 847: $ 185 $ 2301 $ 2,44¢
Our share of:
Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets $ 1678 $ 203 $ 377 $ 4,12
Impairment of real estate assets $ — % — $ 1,002 $ —
Interest expense $ 184 $ 203 $ 3828 $ 4,19
Net income $ 1,13t % 74¢ % 33 $ 1,67C
Our share of net income $ 1,13 $ 74¢ % 33 $ 1,67(
Management and other fees adjustments 37t 604 1,00¢ 1,15(C

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 1506 ¢ 135 $ 1,34 $ 2,82
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4. Investments in and Advances to Affiliates - @htinued

In 2011, we provided a $ 38.3 million interestly secured loan to our DLF | joint venture thaigmally was scheduled to mature
March 2012 . The loan bears interest at LIBOR pld@ basis points . The maturity date of the loastbeen extended to September 30, 2012
In the second quarter of 201%ve acquired an office property from the joint tele by reducing the balance of the advance dues foom th
joint venture. We deferred our share of the gagorged by the joint venture related to this tratisac We recorded interest income from
loan in interest and other income of $0.2 millioxd&0.3 million during the three months ended BMe2012 and 2011respectively, ar
$0.7 million and $0.3 million during the six monthsded June 30, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

In the second quarter of 2012 , our DLF Il joinhtuge obtained a $50.0 million , thregear secured mortgage loan from a third
lender, bearing a fixed interest rate of 3.5% of.$3nillion of the loan and a floating interesteraif LIBOR plus 250 basis points §40.¢
million of the loan, which was used by the joinhtigre to repay a secured loan at maturity to a tharty lender.

During the first quarter of 2012, we recorded $hilion as our share of impairment of real estatsess on twaffice properties in ol
DLF 1 joint venture, due to a decline in projecsctupancy and a change in the assumed holdingdpefithose assets, which reduced
expected future cash flows from the properties.

5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities

The following table sets forth total intangible etssand acquisitiorelated below market lease liabilities, net of awalated amortizatior

June 30, December 31,
2012 2011
Assets:

Deferred financing costs $ 20,11: $ 18,04«
Less accumulated amortization (7,48¢ (5,797
12,62« 12,247
Deferred leasing costs (including lease incentare$ acquisition-related intangible assets) 177,14( 172,04¢
Less accumulated amortization (63,089 (56,529
114,05t 115,52
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net $ 126,68( $ 127,77

Liabilities (in accounts payable, accrued expensemd other liabilities):
Acquisition-related below market lease liabilities $ 16,34¢ $ 16,44:
Less accumulated amortization (1,966 (971)
$ 14,38( $ 15,47(

The following table sets forth amortization of inggble assets and acquisition-related below mdeeeste liabilities:

Three Months Ended June

30, Six Months Ended June 30
2012 2011 2012 2011
Amortization of deferred financing costs $ 90C $ 821 $ 1.80: $ 1,64
Amortization of deferred leasing costs and acquisitelated intangible assets (in depreciation and
amortization) $ 7,266 $ 4401 $ 13,706 $ 8,757
Amortization of lease incentives (in rental andesttevenues) $ 34C $ 30 $ 68 $ 641
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assg@n rental and other revenues) $ 324 % 191 % 594 % 377
Amortization of acquisition-related below markedde liabilities (in rental and other revenues)  $ (553 $ (25 $ (1,097) 9% (50)
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5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities - Continued

The following table sets forth scheduled future dimation of intangible assets and below markesédabilities:

Amortization
of Deferred
Leasing Costs Amortization
and Acquisition- Amortization of Acquisition-
Related Amortization of Acquisition- Related Below
Amortization Intangible Assets of Lease Related Market Lease
of Deferred (in Depreciation Incentives (in Intangible Assets Liabilities (in
Financing and Rental and Other  (in Rental and Rental and Other
Costs Amortization) Revenues) Other Revenues) Revenues)
July 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 $ 223¢ % 1424: % 77z $ 57¢ % (1,229
2013 3,262 21,83« 1,167 76E (2,087
2014 2,981 17,87 1,01: 504 (2,005
2015 2,26¢ 13,87¢ 77¢ 32¢ (1,768
2016 957 10,88( 60¢ 28C (1,499
Thereafter 92C 25,45: 2,37¢ 717 (5,799
$ 12,62¢ $ 104,16¢ $ 6,71¢ $ 3,17:  $ (14,380)

The weighted average remaining amortization perfoddgeferred financing costs, deferred leasingscand acquisitiomelated intangibl
assets (in depreciation and amortization), leasenitives (in rental and other revenues), acquisitidated intangible assets (in rental
other revenues) and acquisition-related below ntddase liabilities (in rental and other revenues)ye 3.8 years, 6.2 years, 7.8 ye&s,
years an8.9 years, respectively, as of June 30, 2012 .

In connection with the acquisition of an office pesty in Cary, NC in the second quarter of 2012,recorded $ 2.7 million of iptace
lease intangible assets with a weighted averagetematkion period of 6.3 years at the date of theusition. The contractual rents of the in-
place lease acquired were determined to be at marke

6. Mortgages and Notes Payable

The following table sets forth our mortgages antta@ayable:

June 30, December 31,

2012 2011
Secured indebtedness $ 743,49. $ 750,04
Unsecured indebtedness 1,079,631 1,153,16
Total mortgages and notes payable $ 1823120 $ 1,9032L

At June 30, 2012 , our secured mortgage loans saered by real estate assets with an aggregasprauiated book value of15237."
million .

Our $ 475.0 million unsecured revolving credit fagiis scheduled to mature on July 27, 20drid includes an accordion feature
allows for an additional $ 75.0 millioof borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occu
we have an option to extend the maturity for anitealthl year. The interest rate at our current reatings isLIBOR plus 150 basis poir
and the annual facility fee is 35 basis points. terest rate and facility fee are based on tighdr of the publicly announced ratings fi
Moody's Investors Service or Standard & Poor'srigatiServices. We use our revolving credit faciiiyworking capital purposes and for
shortterm funding of our development and acquisitionivatgt and, in certain instances, the repayment thieo debt. Continuing ability
borrow under the revolving credit facility allows to quickly capitalize on strategic opportuniteshort-term interest rates. There wa&b®
million and $ 28.1 million outstanding under ouvetving credit facility at June 30, 2012 and Ju$; 2012 , respectively. At bothune 3(
2012 and July 19, 2012 , we had $ 0.1 millaroutstanding letters of credit, which reducesahailability on our revolving credit facility. /
a result, the unused capacity of our revolving itritility at June 30, 2012 and July 19, 2012 \§a399.4 million and $ 446.8 million
respectively.
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6. Mortgages and Notes Payable - Continued

In the second quarter of 2012 , we repurchasedl$hillion principal amount of unsecured notes duardhh 2017bearing interest
5.85% for a purchase price of 107.5% of par valMe.recorded $1.0 million of loss on debt extingmsimt related to this repurchase.

In the first quarter of 2012, we obtained a $228illion , seven -year unsecured bank term loanibganterest olLIBOR plus 190 bas
points. This floating interest rate effectively was fixeg the interest rate swaps discussed in Note @. groceeds were used to pay
amounts then outstanding under our revolving cifeditity.

We are currently in compliance with the debt covesand other requirements with respect to ourtantting debt.

7. Derivative Financial Instruments

We have six floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps $even -year periods each with respect to aneggtg of $225.0 million LIBOR-
based borrowings. These swaps effectively fix thdeulying LIBOR rate at a weighted average of 1%78The counterparties under
swaps are major financial institutions. The swapaments contain a provision whereby if we defaaliany of our indebtedness, if gre
than $ 10.0 milliorand that results in repayment of such indebtedbess), or becoming capable of being acceleratethéyender, then v
could also be declared in default on our derivatibbgations. These swaps have been designatedidagra being accounted for as cash
hedges with changes in fair value recorded in otieenprehensive income each reporting period. Na gailoss was recognized relates
hedge ineffectiveness or to amounts excluded frifettveness testing on our cash flow hedges dutiegsix months ended June 30, 2012
As of June 30, 2012 , we have not posted any eo#latelated to our interest rate swap liability.

Amounts reported in accumulated other comprehensise ("AOCL") related to derivatives will be res$ified to interest expense
interest payments are made on our variable-rate Beining the period from July 1, 2012 through J3@0e 2013, we estimate th$®.1 millior
will be reclassified as an increase to intereseasp.

The following table sets forth the fair value ofr @erivative instruments:

June 30, December 31,
2012 2011
Liability Derivatives:
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges in othabilities:
Interest rate swaps $ 7,767 § 2,20z

The following table sets forth the effect of ouslkedlow hedges on AOCL and interest expense:

Three Months Ended June
30, Six Months Ended June 30

2012 2011 2012 2011

Derivatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedges:
Amount of unrealized losses recognized in AOCL onativatives (effective portion):
Interest rate swaps $ (7,48) $ — $ (7,08) $ —

Amount of (gains)/losses reclassified out of AOCLnto contractual interest expense
(effective portion):

Interest rate swaps $ 78z % (299 $ 1.45¢ % (58)
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8. Noncontrolling Interests
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp

Noncontrolling interests in the Operating Partngrsklate to the ownership of Common Units by vasiondividuals and entities ott
than the Company. Net income attributable to notroimg interests in the Operating Partnershigcésnputed by applying the weigh
average percentage of Common Units not owned b timepany during the period, as a percent of the taimber of outstanding Comrmr
Units, to the Operating Partnership’s net incormetie period after deducting distributions on Pnefé Units.

The following table sets forth noncontrolling irgsts in the Operating Partnership:

Six Months Ended June 30,

2012 2011
Beginning noncontrolling interests in the Operatitaytnership $ 110,65 $ 120,83t
Adjustments of noncontrolling interests in the Gyierg Partnership to fair value 16,50: 6,957
Conversion of Common Units to Common Stock (631) (635)
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interastthe Operating Partnership 1,51z 1,13(
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in thegdating Partnership (3,15¢%) (3,21
Total noncontrolling interests in the OperatingtRarship $ 124880 § 125,07t

The following table sets forth net income availatdecommon stockholders and transfers from norrediittg interests in the Operati
Partnership:

Three Months Ended June

30, Six Months Ended June 30
2012 2011 2012 2011
Net income available for common stockholders $ 12,96: $ 10,11 $ 29,65¢ $ 20,24¢
Increase in additional paid in capital from coni@nrof Common Units to Common Stock 56¢ 44¢ 631 63t
Change from net income available for common stoldérs and transfers from noncontrolling
interests $ 13,53( $ 10,56: $ 30,287 $ 20,885

Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Affiliates

At June 30, 2012 , noncontrolling interests in cdidgated affiliates relates to our joint venturetpar's 50.0%nterest in office propertit
located in Richmond, VA. Our joint venture partigean unrelated third party.

9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument

The following summarizes the three levels of inghtt we use to measure fair value, as well assisets, noncontrolling interests in
Operating Partnership and liabilities that we retdpg at fair value using those levels of inputs.

Level 1. Quoted prices in active markets for identicab#ssr liabilities.

Our Level 1 assets are investments in marketalderisies that we use to pay benefits under our qualified deferred compensat
plan. Our Level 1 noncontrolling interests in thpe@ating Partnership relate to the ownership of @om Units by various individuals a
entities other than the Company. Our Level 1 ligbis our non-qualified deferred compensation géation.

Level 2.0bservable inputs other than Level 1 prices, sgofuated prices for similar assets or liabilitigsoted prices in markets that
not active; or other inputs that are observableasr be corroborated by observable market dataufestantially the full term of the relat
assets or liabilities.
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

Our Level 2 asset is the fair value of our mortgagad notes receivable, which was estimated byirtbeme approach utilizir
contractual cash flows and markesed interest rates to approximate the priceviioatd be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants.

Our Level 2 liabilities include (1) the fair valeé our mortgages and notes payable, which was attiirby the income approach utiliz
contractual cash flows and markesed interest rates to approximate the priceviioatd be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants and (2) interest rate swaps whosevédire is determined using the market standard edelbgy of netting the discounted fut
fixed cash receipts and the discounted expectddblarcash payments. The variable cash paymemardhterest rate swaps are based o
expectation of future LIBOR interest rates (forwamatves) derived from observed market LIBOR intemase curves. In addition, cre
valuation adjustments are incorporated in thevialues to account for potential nonperformance, tisik were concluded to not be signific
inputs to the calculation for the periods presented

Level 3. Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlen@market activity and that are significant to fae value of the assets
liabilities.

Our Level 3 assets include our tax increment fimandond, which is not routinely traded but whoaé #alue is determined by 1
income approach utilizing contractual cash flowd amarketbased interest rates to estimate the projectedngtiten value based on quo
bid/ask prices for similar unrated municipal boadsl, if any, real estate assets andsfle residential condominiums recorded at fair ealt
a nonfecurring basis as a result of our quarterly impaint analysis, which were valued using broker apirof value and substantiated
internal cash flow projections.

Our Level 3 liability is the fair value of our finaing obligations, which was estimated by the ineapproach to approximate the p
that would be paid in an orderly transaction betwemrket participants, utilizing: (1) contractuakh flows; (2) markebased interest rat:
and (3) a number of other assumptions including ateifor space, competition for customers, changesarket rental rates, costs
operation and expected ownership periods.

The following tables set forth the assets, nonadiimyg interests in the Operating Partnership aadilities that we measure at fair va
by level within the fair value hierarchy. We detémmthe level based on the lowest level of substanput used to determine fair value.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant Significant
Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
June 30, 2012 or Liabilities Inputs Inputs

Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair valye $ 17,33( % — % 17,33( % —
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid

expenses and other assets) 3,09¢ 3,09¢ — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensekaiher assets) 15,37 — — 15,37:

Total Assets $ 35,80( $ 3,09¢ % 17,33( % 15,37:
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp $ 124,88( $ 124,88( $ — % —
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiye $ 191824 % — $ 191824 % —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrxgehses and other liabilities) 7,76% — 7,76% —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationg@tounts payable, accrued

expenses and other liabilities) 3,09¢ 3,09¢ — —
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 21,14: — — 21,14

Total Liabilities $ 1950,24 % 3,09¢ $ 1,926,000 $ 21,14:
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant Significant
December 31, Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
2011 or Liabilities Inputs Inputs

Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair valye $ 18,99 $ — 18,99 $ —
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid

expenses and other assets) 3,14¢ 3,14¢ — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensekaiher assets) 14,78¢ — — 14,78¢
Impaired real estate assets and for-sale residlentidominiums 12,767 — — 12,76,

Total Assets $ 49,69 % 3,14¢  $ 18,99 $ 27,55¢
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnership $ 110,65 $ 110,65 $ — 3 =
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiye $ 199293 $ — $ 199293 $ —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrxehses and other liabilities) 2,202 — 2,20z —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationg@tounts payable, accrued

expenses and other liabilities) 3,14¢ 3,14¢ — —
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 18,86¢ — — 18,86¢

Total Liabilities $ 2017,15 $ 3,14¢ $§ 1,995,133 $ 18,86¢

(1) Amounts carried at historical cost on oun&aidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2012 andchibece31, 2011 , respectively.

The following table sets forth the changes in oewél 3 asset, which is recorded at fair value anGansolidated Balance Sheets on a
recurring basis:

Three Months Ended June

30, Six Months Ended June 30
2012 2011 2012 2011
Asset:
Tax Increment Financing Bond:
Beginning balance $ 15,07F $ 1556: $ 14,78 $ 15,69¢
Unrealized gains/(losses) (in AOCL) 29¢ (33€) 582 471
Ending balance $ 1537 $ 1522¢ $ 1537 $ 15,22¢

In 2007, we acquired a tax increment financing bassbciated with a parking garage developed byhis.bond amortizes to maturity
2020 . The estimated fair value at June 30, 2012 $ta7 millionbelow the outstanding principal due on the bondhéf discount rate used
fair value this bond was 100 basis points highdower, the fair value of the bond would have b&6ré million lower or $0.6 milliorhigher
respectively, as of June 30, 2012Ve intend to hold this bond and have concluded tie will not be required to sell this bond be
recovery of the bond principal. Payment of the gipal and interest for the bond is guaranteed by\eshave recorded no credit losses re
to the bond during the three and six months ended 30, 2012 and 2011There is no legal right of offset with the liatyil which we repol
as a financing obligation, related to this tax @ment financing bond.
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

The following table sets forth quantitative infortioa about the unobservable inputs of our LevesS8es which is recorded at fair va
on our Consolidated Balance Sheets on a recurasighb

Fair Value at Valuation Unobservable Discount
June 30, 2012 Technique Input Rate
Tax increment financing bond $ 15,371 Income approach Discount rate 9.85%

10. Share-based Payment

During the six months ended June 30, 2012 , wetgdat®0,886tock options with an exercise price equal to theisg market price of
share of our Common Stock on the date of grant.falnevalue of each option grant is estimated andhte of grant using the Bla8chole
option pricing model, which resulted in a weightadcerage grant date fair value per share of $ 5@iring the six months endeline 3(
2012 , we also granted 90,983 shares of time-besstdcted stock and 67,902 shares of total relased restricted stock with weigh
average grant date fair values per share of $ 3#7$ 38.71 , respectively. We recorded stockébasenpensation expense o2 million
and $ 1.4 million during the three months endede R0 2012 and 2011 , respectively, and $ 4.5 anilind $ 3.5 million during thsix
months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 , respectielune 30, 2012 , there was $7.6 million of tatatecognized stockased compensati
costs, which will be recognized over a weightedrage remaining contractual term of 2.6 years.

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Los

The following table sets forth the components afumeulated other comprehensive loss:

Six Months Ended June 30,

2012 2011
Tax increment financing bond:
Beginning balance $ (2,309 $ (2,543
Unrealized gains/(losses) on tax increment finagndiond 58¢ 47y
Ending balance (1,726 (3,019
Cash flow hedges:
Beginning balance (3,425 (1,105
Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges (7,087 —
Amortization of cash flow hedges 1,45¢ (59
Ending balance (9,059 (1,169
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (10,779 $ (4,17)
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12. Discontinued Operation:

The following table sets forth our operations whieljuired classification as discontinued operations

Three Months Ended June

30, Six Months Ended June 30
2012 2011 2012 2011

Rental and other revenues $ 204 $ 2907 $ 438 $ 6,16¢
Operating expenses:

Rental property and other expenses 96€ 1,39( 2,084 2,86:

Depreciation and amortization 32z T7¢€ 1,00¢ 1,65

Total operating expenses 1,28¢ 2,16¢ 3,092 451°

Income from discontinued operations 75¢€ 73¢ 1,291 1,65¢

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations 1,38t — 6,51¢ —

Total discontinued operations $§ 2141 % 73¢ §  781C § 1,65

The following table sets forth the major classeassfets and liabilities of our real estate andraihsets held for sale, net:

June 30, December 31,
2012 2011

Assets:
Land $ 3,84¢ $ 5,74¢
Buildings and tenant improvements 49,46( 65,86(
Accumulated depreciation (18,749 (23,91)
Net real estate assets 34,56¢ 47,69:
Accrued straight line rents receivable 1,49( 1,72¢
Deferred leasing costs, net 67¢€ 811
Prepaid expenses and other assets 17 10€
Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale $ 36,75 $ 50,33¢
Tenant security deposits, deferred rents and ad@osts1) $ 59t § 23¢

(1) Included in accounts payable, accrued expensesthed liabilities

As of June 30, 2012, real estate and other ass&i<dr sale, net, included five office propertisdNashville, TN and oneffice propert
in Kansas City, MO. As of December 31, 2011, resthi® and other assets held for sale, net, inclfideaffice properties in Nashville, Tl
one office property in Pinellas County, FL and aféice property and 96esidential units in Kansas City, MO. All of thepeopertie
qualified for discontinued operations.
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13. Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation asig and diluted earnings per share:

Earnings per Common Share - basic:
Numerator:

Income from continuing operations

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intdeem the Operating Partnership from continuingrafiens

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeem consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras
Dividends on Preferred Stock
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption/repurchageowes carrying value

Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders

Income from discontinued operations

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteee the Operating Partnership from discontinued
operations

Income from discontinued operations available fammon stockholders
Net income available for common stockholders
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Shareighted average shar@s (2)
Earnings per Common Share - basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders
Income from discontinued operations available fammon stockholders
Net income available for common stockholders
Earnings per Common Share - diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéeem consolidated affiliates from continuing opéras
Dividends on Preferred Stock

Excess of Preferred Stock redemption/repurchageowes carrying value

Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders before net (income) attributa

to noncontrolling interests in the Operating Parthi

Income from discontinued operations available finmon stockholders

Net income available for common stockholders befea(income) attributable to noncontrolling
interests in the Operating Partnership

Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Shareghtex] average sharés (2)
Add:
Stock options using the treasury method

Noncontrolling interests Common Units

Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Shaadjusted weighted average shares and assumed

conversiong 1)
Earnings per Common Share - diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders
Income from discontinued operations available finmon stockholders

Net income available for common stockholders

Three Months Ended June 30,

Six Months Ended June 30,

2012 2011 2012 2011

12,357 $ 13,69F $ 25020 $ 2522
(584) (586) (1,139 (1,049
(229) (182) (407) (305)
(627) (1,629 (1,259 (3,299
— (1,89 — (1,89
10,92 9,41( 22,22¢ 18,67
2,141 73¢ 7,81( 1,65¢
(102) (37 (380) (83)
2,03¢ 702 7,43( 1,571
12,96 $ 10,11 $ 29,65¢ $  20,24¢
74,66. 72,217 73,74¢ 72,01t
01F $ 01z $ 03C $ 0.2¢
0.0z 0.01 0.1¢ 0.0z
017 $ 014 $ 04C $ 0.2¢
12,357 $ 13,698 $ 25020 $ 2522
(223) (182) (407) (305)
(627) (1,627 (1,259 (3,299
— (1,89¢) — (1,89%)
11,507 9,99¢ 23,35¢ 19,72
2,141 73¢ 7,81( 1,65¢
13646 $ 10,738 $ 31,16¢ $ 21,37¢
74,66: 72,217 73,74¢ 72,01¢
141 202 12¢ 185
3,71¢ 3,78¢ 3,72: 3,787
78,52: 76,19 77,60: 75,981
01F $ 01z $ 03C $ 0.2€
0.0z 0.01 0.1¢ 0.0z
017 $ 014 $ 04C $ 0.2¢
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13. Earnings Per Share -Continued

(1) There were 0.5 million and 0.3 million optiomststanding during the three months ended Jun2@®(® and 2011 , respectively, and 0.5 million ared
million options outstanding during the six monthwled June 30, 2012 and 20lfespectively, that were not included in the cotapion of dilutet
earnings per share because the impact of inclugliog options would be anti-dilutive

(2) Includes all unvested restricted stock sinweldnds on restricted stock are nfamfeitable
14. Segment Information

The following table summarizes the rental and otkeenues and net operating income, the primanysing propertylevel performanc
metric which is defined as rental and other revsriess rental property and other expenses, for ieguairtable segment:

Three Months Ended June

30, Six Months Ended June 30
2012 2011 2012 2011
Rental and Other Revenues(1)

Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 16,20¢ $ 12,34. $ 31,991 $ 24,24.
Greenville, SC 3,48¢ 3,43 6,99: 6,942
Kansas City, MO 3,56( 3,441 7,16 6,96(
Memphis, TN 10,13( 10,077 20,26¢ 20,17¢
Nashville, TN 14,32: 13,572 28,18¢ 26,31t
Orlando, FL 2,75¢ 2,61¢ 5,44: 4,93¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 5,072 5,27: 10,152 10,631
Pittsburgh, PA 9,11: — 18,19¢ —
Raleigh, NC 20,40( 20,10z 40,17¢ 39,42
Richmond, VA 12,09t 11,66¢ 23,60t 23,04¢
Tampa, FL 17,57¢ 17,06« 34,71t 33,43¢
Total Office Segment 114,72: 99,59t 226,89¢ 196,11

Industrial:

Atlanta, GA 3,84¢ 4,02¢ 7,62% 7,96
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,08 2,82t 6,251 5,80z
Total Industrial Segment 6,93¢ 6,85:% 13,87 13,76¢

Retail:
Kansas City, MO 9,07t 8,20: 17,99¢ 17,10:
Total Retail Segment 9,07t 8,20: 17,99¢ 17,10:¢
Total Rental and Other Revenues $ 130,73! $ 114,65. $ 258,76¢ $ 226,98
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14. Segment Information -Continued

Three Months Ended June

30, Six Months Ended June 30
2012 2011 2012 2011
Net Operating Income: (1)
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 1042¢ $ 797¢ $ 20,82 $ 15,46¢
Greenville, SC 2,051 2,067 4,18: 4,14
Kansas City, MO 2,18¢ 2,112 4,51¢ 4,25¢
Memphis, TN 5,841 5,46 11,94: 11,22:
Nashville, TN 9,83t 9,36¢ 19,49( 18,00
Orlando, FL 1,431 1,28¢ 2,847 2,45(
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,21¢ 3,452 6,452 7,05:
Pittsburgh, PA 4,627 — 8,91( —
Raleigh, NC 14,29 14,27: 28,14¢ 27,48¢
Richmond, VA 8,53¢ 8,231 16,41¢ 16,09(
Tampa, FL 10,81 10,557 21,65( 20,68¢
Total Office Segment 73,25¢ 64,78( 145,37¢ 126,85:
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA 2,761 3,001 5,64¢ 5,84(
Piedmont Triad, NC 2,30¢ 2,107 4,59¢ 4,331
Total Industrial Segment 5,06¢ 5,10¢ 10,24 10,17:
Retail:
Kansas City, MO 5,32: 4,83 10,857 10,12
Total Retail Segment 5,32% 4,83: 10,85 10,12
Total Net Operating Income 83,64¢ 74,72( 166,48( 147,14
Reconciliation to income from continuing operationsefore disposition of property and
condominiums and equity in earnings of unconsolidatd affiliates:
Depreciation and amortization (40,27¢) (32,689 (78,105 (65,627
General and administrative expense (8,900 (7,97¢ (18,579 (15,779
Interest expense (24,495 (23,907 (49,29)) (47,450
Other income 764 1,87¢ 2,994 3,74¢
Income from continuing operations before dispositid property and condominiums and equity in
earnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 10,73¢ § 12,02¢ $ 2349¢ § 22,04¢

(1) Net of discontinued operatiol
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15. Subsequent Event

In early July 2012 , the Company issued 451 8tdres of Common Stock from sales in the secondeguzf 2012 under our equity sé
agreements at an average gross sales price of2y38rShare raising net proceeds, after sales cesions and expenses, of $14.9 million .

On July 13, 2012 , we acquired two medical officegerties in Greensboro, NC for $16.4 milliolihe transaction included the issue
of approximately 77,000 Common Units. We expeceitpense approximately $0.1 million of costs reldtethis acquisition.

On July 13, 2012 , we sold five non-core officelthimgs in Nashville, TN for $41.0 millionWe expect to record gain on dispositiol
discontinued operations of $6.8 million relatedHis disposition.

On July 25, 2012 , we sold three GSA-leased bugliim Jackson, MS and Atlanta, GA for $86.5 milliowe expect to record gain
disposition of discontinued operations of $14.0lioml related to this disposition.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Unaudited and in thousands, except unit and pidare)

June 30, December 31,
2012 2011
Assets:
Real estate assets, at cost:
Land $ 366,92! $ 364,02:
Buildings and tenant improvements 3,117,733l 3,078,30:
Development in process 6,09¢ —
Land held for development 102,48 105,20t
3,593,23 3,547,53
Less-accumulated depreciation (913,019 (877,38))
Net real estate assets 2,680,21! 2,670,15.
For-sale residential condominiums 2,43¢ 4,751
Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale 36,75 50,33¢
Cash and cash equivalents 6,631 11,15:
Restricted cash 20,757 26,66¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $3,262 $81%48, respectively 21,88: 30,09:
Mortgages and notes receivable, net of allowan&ld8 and $61, respectively 17,05¢ 18,60(
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofwaiace of $866 and $1,294, respectively 113,69! 104,28:
Investments in and advances to unconsolidatedohés 76,031 99,29¢
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdated amortization of $70,572 and $62,319, respelgti 126,68( 127,77:
Prepaid expenses and other assets 41,82¢ 36,78:
Total Assets $ 314396 $ 3,179,88
Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnership Unitsand Equity:
Mortgages and notes payable $ 1,823,120 $ 1,903,21
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiiedbil 137,04° 148,82:
Financing obligations 30,82: 31,44«
Total Liabilities 1,990,99 2,083,47
Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable Operating Partnership Units:
Common Units, 3,711,152 and 3,729,518 outstandespectively 124,88( 110,65!
Series A Preferred Units (liquidation preferenced®@ per unit), 29,077 units issued and outstanding 29,077 29,071
Total Redeemable Operating Partnership Units 153,95 139,73:
Equity:
Common Units:
General partner Common Units, 789,216 and 759,68tanding, respectively 10,04¢ 9,57¢
Limited partner Common Units, 74,421,263 and 71,209 outstanding, respectively 995,14" 948,18
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (10,779 (5,739
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiliates 4,59: 4,64¢
Total Equity 999,01( 956,67+
Total Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnershiits and Equity $ 314396 §$ 317988

See accompanying notes to consolidated financassients.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Income
(Unaudited and in thousands, except per unit anspunt

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended June
June 30, 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Rental and other revenues $ 130,73¢ $ 114,65 $ 258,76¢ $ 226,98
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 47,03( 39,86¢ 92,167 79,924
Depreciation and amortization 40,27¢ 32,68¢ 78,10t 65,621
General and administrative 8,95¢ 8,041 18,69+ 15,68¢
Total operating expenses 96,26¢ 80,59 188,96¢ 161,23(
Interest expense:
Contractual 23,64 22,94( 47,591 45,37!
Amortization of deferred financing costs 90C 821 1,80z 1,642
Financing obligations (48) 14€ (96) 437
24,49 23,901 49,297 47,45(
Other income:
Interest and other income 1,737 1,89¢ 3,967 3,772
Losses on debt extinguishment 973 (24) 973 (24)
764 1,87¢ 2,99/ 3,74¢
Income from continuing operations before dispositin of property and condominiums and equity in earnirgs
of unconsolidated affiliates 10,73¢ 12,02¢ 23,49¢ 22,04¢
Gains on disposition of property — 20C — 20C
Gains on for-sale residential condominiums 11C 11€ 17& 154
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 1,511 1,357 1,351 2,832
Income from continuing operations 12,36( 13,69¢ 25,02t 25,23t
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations 75€ 73¢ 1,291 1,654
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations 1,38¢ — 6,51¢ —
2,141 73¢ 7,81C 1,654
Net income 14,50! 14,43¢ 32,83t 26,88¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeem consolidated affiliates (223 (182) (407) (305)
Distributions on Preferred Units (627) (1,6229) (1,259 (3,299
Excess of Preferred Unit redemption/repurchase @ast carrying value — (1,895 — (1,895
Net income available for common unitholders $ 1365 $ 10,73¢ $ 31,17« $ 21,39
Earnings per Common Unit — basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 0.1t $ 0.1 $ 03C $ 0.2€
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders 0.0¢ 0.01 0.1C 0.0z
Net income available for common unitholders $ 0.1t $ 014 $ 04C $ 0.2¢
Weighted average Common Units outstanding — basic 77,971 75,58¢ 77,06 75,39:
Earnings per Common Unit — diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 0.1t $ 0.1 $ 03C $ 0.2¢€
Income from discontinued operations available fammon unitholders 0.0z 0.01 0.1C 0.0z
Net income available for common unitholders $ 017 $ 014 $ 04C $ 0.2¢
Weighted average Common Units outstanding — diluted 78,11: 75,78¢ 77,19: 75,57¢
Distributions declared per Common Unit $ 042t  $ 042t  $ 0.85( $ 0.85(
Net income available for common unitholders:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 1151C $ 10,00 $ 23,36¢ $ 19,73¢
Income from discontinued operations available fammon unitholders 2,141 736 7,81C 1,65¢

Net income available for common unitholders $ 13657 $ 10,73¢ $ 31,17« $ 21,39(




See accompanying notes to consolidated financa#tsients.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended June

30, Six Months Ended June 30
2012 2011 2012 2011
Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Net income $ 1450 $ 1443t $ 32,83 $ 26,88¢
Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Unrealized gains/(losses) on tax increment finap&iond 29¢ (336 58¢ (471)
Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges (7,48)) — (7,087 —
Amortization of cash flow hedges 782 (29) 1,45¢ (59
Total other comprehensive loss (6,409 (365) (5,045 (529
Total comprehensive income $ 809 $ 14,07 $ 27,790 $ 26,36(
Less-comprehensive (income) attributable to nomodimg interests (223%) (182 (407) (305)
Comprehensive income attributable to the Operd®iagnership $ 7878 § 13897 § 27,38 § 26,05

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Capital
(Unaudited and in thousands, except unit amounts)

Common Units

Noncontrolling

General Limited Accumulated Interests in
Partners’ Partners’ Other Consolidated Total Partners’
Capital Capital Comprehensive Loss Affiliates Capital
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 9,57t % 948,18° $ 5,73) $ 4,64 $ 956,67+
Issuances of Common Units, net 91¢ 90,91¢ — — 91,83¢t
Distributions paid on Common Units (65€) (64,94)) — — (65,597
Distributions paid on Preferred Units (13 (1,247 — — (1,259
Share-based compensation expense 45 4,414 — — 4,45¢
Distribution to noncontrolling interests in constated affiliates — — — (460) (460)
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair valnd
contributions/distributions from/to the GeneraltRar (144 (14,299 — — (14,439
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intese consolidated
affiliates (4) (4093 407 —
Comprehensive income:
Net income 32€ 32,50 — — 32,83t
Other comprehensive loss — — (5,04%) — (5,045
Total comprehensive income 27,79(
Balance at June 30] 2012 $ 10,045 $ 995,14 $ (10,775) $ 4,59: $ 999,01(
Common Units .
Noncontrolling
General Limited Accumulated Interests in
Partners’ Partners’ Other Consolidated Total Partners’
Capital Capital Comprehensive Loss Affiliates Capital
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 10,04 % 994,61( $ (3,649 $ 4,46C $ 1,005,46!
Issuances of Common Units, net 17C 16,81+« — — 16,98¢
Distributions paid on Common Units (640) (63,29¢) — — (63,93¢)
Distributions paid on Preferred Units (33 (3,26¢€) — — (3,299
Share-based compensation expense 35 3,41¢ — — 3,45:
Distribution to noncontrolling interests in conslated affiliates — — — (319) (319)
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair vaind
contributions/distributions from/to the GeneraltRar (48) (4,769 — — (4,81%)
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intese consolidated
affiliates (©)] (302) — 30& —
Comprehensive income/(loss):
Net income 26¢ 26,62( — — 26,88¢
Other comprehensive loss — — (529 — (529
Total comprehensive income 26,36(
Balance at June 30’ 2011 $ 9,791 $ 969,82( $ (4,17_1) $ 4,446 $ 979,89:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Six Months Ended June 30,

2012 2011
Operating activities:
Net income $ 32,83 % 26,88¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigesl by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 79,11 67,274
Amortization of lease incentives and acquisitiolated intangible assets and liabilities 18C 96€
Share-based compensation expense 4,45¢ 3,452
Allowance for losses on accounts and accrued $itrdiige rents receivable 53¢ 1,02¢
Amortization of deferred financing costs 1,80z 1,64z
Amortization of cash flow hedges 1,45¢ (58)
Losses on debt extinguishment 972 24
Net gains on disposition of property (6,519 (200)
Gains on for-sale residential condominiums a75) (1549)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates (1,35)) (2,837
Changes in financing obligations (584) (24%)
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated #fiés 2,211 2,15(C
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 7,29¢ (1,82))
Prepaid expenses and other assets (3,07%) (5449
Accrued straight-line rents receivable (9,41%) (6,09¢)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheritiedbil (16,419 (3,799
Net cash provided by operating activities 93,33¢ 87,68
Investing activities:
Investment in acquired real estate and relateagiltée assets, net of cash acquired — (7,767)
Investment in development in process (1,53)) (2,59¢)
Investment in tenant improvements and deferredrigasosts (43,85)) (28,45¢€)
Investment in building improvements (19,759 (5,632
Net proceeds from disposition of real estate assets 19,89¢ 2,062
Net proceeds from disposition of for-sale residdrdondominiums 2,492 2,401
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated atities 901 632
Repayments of mortgages and notes receivable 1,544 23t
Investments in and advances to unconsolidatedeaéd (2,750 (39,407)
Changes in restricted cash and other investingities 4,031 (395)
Net cash used in investing activities (39,029 (78,919
Financing activities:
Distributions on Common Units (65,597 (63,93€)
Redemptions/repurchases of Preferred Units — (52,505
Distributions on Preferred Units (1,259 (3,299
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates (460) (319)
Proceeds from the issuance of Common Units 95,28¢ 16,98¢
Costs paid for the issuance of Common Units (1,31¢€) —
Repurchase of units related to tax withholdings (2,137%) —
Borrowings on revolving credit facility 106,30( 124,70(
Repayments of revolving credit facility (392,80() (79,300
Borrowings on mortgages and notes payable 225,00( 200,00(
Repayments of mortgages and notes payable (29,359 (153,52)

Payments on financing obligations (39) —



Additions to deferred financing costs and otheaficing activities (2,45¢) (2,689

Net cash used in financing activities (58,830) (13,88)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (4,520 (5,111
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gherio 11,15 14,19¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period $ 6,631 $ 9,081

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéhfincing activities:

Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges

Changes in accrued capital expenditures

Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets

Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing atehsing costs

Unrealized gains on marketable securities of noaified deferred compensation plan
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair value

Unrealized gains/(losses) on tax increment finagéiond

Reduction of advances to unconsolidated affiliagdmted to acquisition activities

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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Six Months Ended June 30,

2012 2011

48,060 $ 44,94¢

Six Months Ended June 30,

2012 2011
(7,087 $ —
(2,44%) 1,52t
28,62 23,35:

8,76t 8,247
21€ 21¢
14,22t 4,237
582 471
26,00( —
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per ui data)
(Unaudited)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accaiing Policies
Description of Business

Highwoods Properties, Inc., together with its cdigsded subsidiaries (the “Company”), is a fulltegrated, self-administered and self-
managed equity real estate investment trust (“REif&t provides leasing, management, developmenstruction and other customertatec
services for its properties and for third parti#@e Company conducts virtually all of its activitithrough Highwoods Realty Limit
Partnership (the “Operating Partnership”). At J8Ae 2012 , the Company and/or the Operating Patiqemwholly owned: 304 iservice
office, industrial and retail properties, comprgia9.5 million square feet; nine for-sale resid@ntondominiums; 58&cres of undevelop
land suitable for future development, of which %itBes are considered core assets; and one offipenty under development.

The Company is the sole general partner of the &iper Partnership. At June 30, 20,lthe Company owned all of the Preferred L
and 75.2 million , or 95.3% , of the Common Unitsthie Operating Partnership. Limited partners,udiclg one officer and twdirectors o
the Company, own the remaining 3.7 milli@@mmon Units. In the event the Company issues shEr€ommon Stock, the net proceeds
contributed to the Operating Partnership in exckdaong additional Common Units. Generally, the OfiagpPartnership is required to rede
each Common Unit at the request of the holder tidor cash equal to the value of one share ofGbmpany’s Common Stock, $ 0.pal
value, based on the average of the market pricthétOtrading days immediately preceding the notice datich redemption, provided tl
the Company at its option may elect to acquiresargh Common Units presented for redemption for casine share of Common Stock.
Common Units owned by the Company are not redeeand@hliring the six months ended June 30, 2012 Cibvapany redeemeti8,36¢
Common Units for a like number of shares of Comr8taock. The redemptions, in conjunction with thegaexds from issuances of Comr
Stock contributed to the Operating Partnershipxichange for additional Common Units, increasedpieentage of Common Units ow!
by the Company from 95.1% at December 31, 201518% at June 30, 2012 .

Common Stock Offerings

The Company has entered into equity sales agresméitft various financial institutions to offer asdll, from time to time, shares of
Common Stock by means of ordinary brokers' tranmagton the New York Stock Exchange or otherwismatket prices prevailing at t
time of sale, at prices related to prevailing magkées or at negotiated prices or as otherwiseaagwith any of the institutions. During
three and six months ended June 30, 2012 , the @wyripsued 1,836,976 and 2,622 ,4Mares, respectively, of Common Stock under
agreements at an average gross sales price of7® 38d $ 33.4%er share, respectively, raising net proceedst aftles commissions a
expenses, of $ 61.0 million and $ 86.4 millionspectively.

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are preparednformity with accounting principles generaligcepted in the United States
America (“GAAP”). Our Consolidated Balance SheeDacember 31, 201Was revised from previously reported amounts ttecefin rea
estate and other assets, net, held for sale thogpengies which qualified as held for sale durihg three months ended June 30, 200
Consolidated Statements of Income for the threesanthonths ended June 30, 204ére revised from previously reported amounts fiect
in discontinued operations the operations for thosgerties that qualified for discontinued opemasi. Prior period amounts related to ca
expenditures in our Consolidated Statements of Ekshis have been reclassified to conform to theerurperiod presentation.

Our Consolidated Financial Statements include wholned subsidiaries and those entities in whichhaee the controlling financi
interest. All intercompany transactions and acceunave been eliminated. At June 30, 2012 and DeeeBih 2011, we had involveme
with no entities that we concluded to be variahteriest entities.
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1. Description of Business and Significant Accating Policies — Continued

The unaudited interim consolidated financial stagate and accompanying unaudited consolidated fiagimformation, in the opinion
management, contain all adjustments (including mbmacurring accruals) necessary for a fair predent of our financial position, results
operations and cash flows. We have omitted centaias and other information from the interim coraikd financial statements presente
this Quarterly Report on Form 1D-as permitted by SEC rules and regulations. Ti@ssesolidated Financial Statements should be re
conjunction with our 2011 Annual Report on FormKLO-

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemémntaccordance with GAAP requires us to make edémand assumptions that af
the amounts reported in the consolidated finarstetements and accompanying notes. Actual resuligl differ from those estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

As a result of adopting certain new or amended @tiog pronouncements in the first quarter of 204€,have enhanced our disclos
of assets and liabilities measured at fair valu elacted to continue use of credit valuation adjesits on a net basis by counterparty as
of the calculation to determine the fair value of derivatives. Our disclosures now include: (gngicant transfers between Levels 1 and
the fair value hierarchy, if any; (2) additionalatitative and qualitative information regarding faalue measurements categorized as Le
of the fair value hierarchy; and (3) the hierardtgssification for items whose fair value is notasled on our Consolidated Balance St
but was disclosed previously in our Notes to Cadstéd Financial Statements. Additionally, we hawesented comprehensive income
separate financial statement entitled ConsolidStatements of Comprehensive Income.

2. Real Estate Assets
Acquisitions

During the second quarter of 2012 , we acquired@@&3D0square foot office property in Cary, NC from our BLjoint venture for a
agreed upon value of $26.0 million by reducinglihtance of the advance due to us from the jointuren

Dispositions

During the second quarter of 2012 , we sold a rae-office property in Pinellas County, FL for gsgsroceeds of $9.5 millionWe
recorded gain on disposition of discontinued openatof $1.4 million related to this disposition.

During the first quarter of 2012, we sold 96 vacaarttal residential units in Kansas City, MO foosgg proceeds of $11.0 milliariWVe
recorded gain on disposition of discontinued openatof $5.1 million related to this disposition.

3. Mortgages and Notes Receivable

The following table sets forth our mortgages antéaoeceivable:

June 30, December 31,

2012 2011
Seller financing (first mortgages) $ 15,85 $ 17,18(
Less allowance — —
15,85 17,18(
Promissory notes 1,321 1,481
Less allowance (119) (62)
1,20 1,42(
Mortgages and notes receivable, net $ 17,05¢  § 18,60(
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3. Mortgages and Notes Receivable - Continued

Our mortgages and notes receivable consist priynafikeller financing issued in conjunction withandisposition transactions in 20
This seller financing is evidenced by first mortgagecured by the assignment of rents and the lyimdereal estate assets. We evaluatt
collectibility of the receivables by monitoring theasing statistics and market fundamentals ofetlassets. As of June 30, 201Be paymen
on both mortgages receivable were current and tvere no other indications of impairment on theeieables. We may be required to t
impairment charges in the future if and to the eithe underlying collateral diminishes in value.

The following table sets forth our notes receivallewance, which relates only to promissory notes:

Three Months Ended June

30, Six Months Ended June 30
2012 2011 2012 2011
Beginning notes receivable allowance $ 12z % 497 $ 61 $ 86¢
Bad debt expense — 162 — 184
Recoveries/write-offs/other (4) (42) 57 (439)
Total notes receivable allowance $ 11€ 8 617 $ 11€ 8 617

4. Investments in and Advances to Affiliates
Unconsolidated Affiliates

We have equity interests of up to 50.@9various joint ventures with unrelated third estand a secured debt interest in one of
joint ventures, as described below. The followiaglé sets forth the combined, summarized inconmterastnts for our unconsolidated jc
ventures on the purchase accounting basis:

Three Months Ended June

30, Six Months Ended June 30
2012 2011 2012 2011
Income Statements:
Rental and other revenues $ 2505 $ 23,75¢ $ 48,85 $ 47,95¢
Expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 12,07¢ 10,15¢ 22,87 21,52¢
Depreciation and amortization 5,607 6,052 11,86: 12,29¢
Impairment of real estate assets — — 7,18( —
Interest expense 5,10: 5,68: 10,76¢ 11,50¢
Total expenses 22,78¢ 21,89: 52,68¢ 45,33:
Income/(loss) before disposition of properties 2,271 1,86t (3,830 2,62
Gains on disposition of properties 6,27¢ — 6,27¢ —
Net income $ 854¢ $ 186f $ 2,448 $ 2,62F
Our share of:
Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets $ 163 $ 199t $ 3,698 $ 4,05(
Impairment of real estate assets $ — % — $ 100 % —
Interest expense $ 182 $ 201z $ 3,78 $ 4,14¢
Net income $ 1,14: % 75¢ 0§ 356 $ 1,69
Our share of net income $ 1,14: % 75¢ 0§ 356 $ 1,69
Management and other fees adjustments 36¢ 59¢ 99t 1,13¢

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 1511 ¢ 135 $ 1351 $ 2,832
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4. Investments in and Advances to Affiliates - @htinued

In 2011, we provided a $ 38.3 million interestly secured loan to our DLF | joint venture thaigmally was scheduled to mature
March 2012 . The loan bears interest at LIBOR Blo@ basis points . The maturity date of the loanli®en extended to September 30, 2012
In the second quarter of 201%e acquired an office property from the joint item by reducing the balance of the advance dus foom th
joint venture. We deferred our share of the gagorged by the joint venture related to this tratisac We recorded interest income from
loan in interest and other income of $0.2 milliord&0.3 million during the three months ended BMe2012 and 2011respectively, ar
$0.7 million and $0.3 million during the six montiisded June 30, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

In the second quarter of 2012 , our DLF Il joinhtugre obtained a $50.0 million , thregear secured mortgage loan from a third
lender, bearing a fixed interest rate of 3.5% of.$3nillion of the loan and a floating interesteraif LIBOR plus 250 basis points §40.¢
million of the loan, which was used by the joinhtigre to repay a secured loan at maturity to a tharty lender.

During the first quarter of 2012, we recorded $hilion as our share of impairment of real estatsess on twaffice properties in ol
DLF | joint venture, due to a decline in projecsctupancy and a change in the assumed holdingdpefithose assets, which reduced
expected future cash flows from the properties.

5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities

The following table sets forth total intangible etssand acquisitiorelated below market lease liabilities, net of awalated amortizatior

June 30, December 31,
2012 2011
Assets:

Deferred financing costs $ 20,11: $ 18,04«
Less accumulated amortization (7,48¢ (5,797
12,62« 12,247
Deferred leasing costs (including lease incentarg$ acquisition-related intangible assets) 177,14( 172,04¢
Less accumulated amortization (63,089 (56,529
114,05t 115,52
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net $ 126,68( $ 127,77

Liabilities (in accounts payable, accrued expensemd other liabilities):
Acquisition-related below market lease liabilities $ 16,34¢ $ 16,44:
Less accumulated amortization (1,96¢) 971
$ 14,38( $ 15,47(

The following table sets forth amortization of inggble assets and acquisition-related below mdeeeste liabilities:

Three Months Ended June

30, Six Months Ended June 30
2012 2011 2012 2011
Amortization of deferred financing costs $ 90C $ 821 $ 1.80: $ 1,64
Amortization of deferred leasing costs and acquisitelated intangible assets (in depreciation and
amortization) $ 7,266 $ 4401 $ 13,706 $ 8,757
Amortization of lease incentives (in rental andesttevenues) $ 34C $ 30 $ 68 $ 641
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assgn rental and other revenues) $ 324 % 191 % 594 $ 3717
Amortization of acquisition-related below markedde liabilities (in rental and other revenues)  $ (553 $ (25 $ (1,097) 9% (50)
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5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities - Continued

The following table sets forth scheduled future dimation of intangible assets and below markesédabilities:

Amortization
of Deferred
Leasing Costs Amortization
and Acquisition- Amortization of Acquisition-
Related Amortization of Acquisition- Related Below
Amortization Intangible Assets of Lease Related Market Lease
of Deferred (in Depreciation Incentives (in Intangible Assets Liabilities (in
Financing and Rental and Other  (in Rental and Rental and Other
Costs Amortization) Revenues) Other Revenues) Revenues)
July 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 $ 223¢ % 1424: % 77z $ 57¢ % (1,229
2013 3,262 21,83« 1,167 76E (2,087
2014 2,981 17,87 1,01: 504 (2,005
2015 2,26¢ 13,87¢ 77¢ 32¢ (1,768
2016 957 10,88( 60¢ 28C (1,499
Thereafter 92C 25,45: 2,37¢ 717 (5,799
$ 12,62¢ $ 104,16¢ $ 6,71¢ $ 3,17:  $ (14,380)

The weighted average remaining amortization perfoddgeferred financing costs, deferred leasingscand acquisitiomelated intangibl
assets (in depreciation and amortization), leasenitives (in rental and other revenues), acquisitidated intangible assets (in rental
other revenues) and acquisition-related below ntddase liabilities (in rental and other revenues)ye 3.8 years, 6.2 years, 7.8 ye&s,
years an8.9 years, respectively, as of June 30, 2012 .

In connection with the acquisition of an office pesty in Cary, NC in the second quarter of 2012,recorded $ 2.7 million of iptace
lease intangible assets with a weighted averagetematkion period of 6.3 years at the date of theusition. The contractual rents of the in-
place lease acquired were determined to be at marke

6. Mortgages and Notes Payable

The following table sets forth our mortgages antta@ayable:

June 30, December 31,

2012 2011
Secured indebtedness $ 743,49. $ 750,04
Unsecured indebtedness 1,079,631 1,153,16
Total mortgages and notes payable $ 1823120 $ 1,9032L

At June 30, 2012 , our secured mortgage loans saered by real estate assets with an aggregasprauiated book value of15237."
million .

Our $ 475.0 million unsecured revolving credit fagiis scheduled to mature on July 27, 20drid includes an accordion feature
allows for an additional $ 75.0 millioof borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occu
we have an option to extend the maturity for anitealthl year. The interest rate at our current reatings isLIBOR plus 150 basis poir
and the annual facility fee is 35 basis points. terest rate and facility fee are based on tighdr of the publicly announced ratings fi
Moody's Investors Service or Standard & Poor'srigatiServices. We use our revolving credit faciiiyworking capital purposes and for
shortterm funding of our development and acquisitionivatgt and, in certain instances, the repayment thieo debt. Continuing ability
borrow under the revolving credit facility allows to quickly capitalize on strategic opportuniteshort-term interest rates. There wa&b®
million and $ 28.1 million outstanding under ouvetving credit facility at June 30, 2012 and Ju$; 2012 , respectively. At bothune 3(
2012 and July 19, 2012 , we had $ 0.1 millaroutstanding letters of credit, which reducesahailability on our revolving credit facility. /
a result, the unused capacity of our revolving itritility at June 30, 2012 and July 19, 2012 \§a399.4 million and $ 446.8 million
respectively.
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6. Mortgages and Notes Payable - Continued

In the second quarter of 2012 , we repurchasedl$hillion principal amount of unsecured notes duardhh 2017bearing interest
5.85% for a purchase price of 107.5% of par valMe.recorded $1.0 million of loss on debt extingmsimt related to this repurchase.

In the first quarter of 2012, we obtained a $228illion , seven -year unsecured bank term loanibganterest olLIBOR plus 190 bas
points. This floating interest rate effectively was fixeg the interest rate swaps discussed in Note @. groceeds were used to pay
amounts then outstanding under our revolving cifeditity.

We are currently in compliance with the debt covesand other requirements with respect to ourtantting debt.

7. Derivative Financial Instruments

We have six floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps $even -year periods each with respect to aneggtg of $225.0 million LIBOR-
based borrowings. These swaps effectively fix thdeulying LIBOR rate at a weighted average of 1%78The counterparties under
swaps are major financial institutions. The swapaments contain a provision whereby if we defaaliany of our indebtedness, if gre
than $ 10.0 milliorand that results in repayment of such indebtedbess), or becoming capable of being acceleratethéyender, then v
could also be declared in default on our derivatibbgations. These swaps have been designatedidagra being accounted for as cash
hedges with changes in fair value recorded in otieenprehensive income each reporting period. Na gailoss was recognized relates
hedge ineffectiveness or to amounts excluded frifettveness testing on our cash flow hedges dutiegsix months ended June 30, 2012
As of June 30, 2012 , we have not posted any eo#latelated to our interest rate swap liability.

Amounts reported in accumulated other comprehensise ("AOCL") related to derivatives will be res$ified to interest expense
interest payments are made on our variable-rate Beining the period from July 1, 2012 through J3@0e 2013, we estimate th$®.1 millior
will be reclassified as an increase to intereseasp.

The following table sets forth the fair value ofr @erivative instruments:

June 30, December 31,
2012 2011
Liability Derivatives:
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges in othabilities:
Interest rate swaps $ 7,76 2,20z

The following table sets forth the effect of ouslkedlow hedges on AOCL and interest expense:

Three Months Ended June
30, Six Months Ended June 30

2012 2011 2012 2011

Derivatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedges:
Amount of unrealized losses recognized in AOCL onativatives (effective portion):
Interest rate swaps $ (7.48) ¢ — $ (7,08) % —

Amount of (gains)/losses reclassified out of AOCLnto contractual interest expense
(effective portion):

Interest rate swaps $ 78z % (299 $ 1,45 § (58)

8. Noncontrolling Interests
Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Affiliates

At June 30, 2012 , noncontrolling interests in adidated affiliates relates to our joint venturetpar's 50.0%nterest in office properti
located in Richmond, VA. Our joint venture partigan unrelated third party.
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument

The following summarizes the three levels of infgbts we use to measure fair value, as well asilsets and liabilities that we recogi
at fair value using those levels of inputs.

Level 1. Quoted prices in active markets for identicabsssr liabilities.

Our Level 1 assets are investments in marketalderisies that we use to pay benefits under our qualified deferred compensat
plan. Our Level 1 liability is our non-qualified féered compensation obligation.

Level 2.0bservable inputs other than Level 1 prices, sgofuated prices for similar assets or liabilitigspted prices in markets that
not active; or other inputs that are observableaor be corroborated by observable market dataufostantially the full term of the relai
assets or liabilities.

Our Level 2 asset is the fair value of our mortgagad notes receivable, which was estimated byirtbeme approach utilizir
contractual cash flows and markesed interest rates to approximate the priceviioatd be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants.

Our Level 2 liabilities include (1) the fair valeé our mortgages and notes payable, which was attiirby the income approach utiliz
contractual cash flows and markesed interest rates to approximate the priceviioatd be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants and (2) interest rate swaps whosevédire is determined using the market standard edelbgy of netting the discounted fut
fixed cash receipts and the discounted expectddblarcash payments. The variable cash paymemardhterest rate swaps are based o
expectation of future LIBOR interest rates (forwamatves) derived from observed market LIBOR intemage curves. In addition, cre
valuation adjustments are incorporated in thevialues to account for potential nonperformance, tisik were concluded to not be signific
inputs to the calculation for the periods presented

Level 3. Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlen@market activity and that are significant to fae value of the assets
liabilities.

Our Level 3 assets include our tax increment fimandond, which is not routinely traded but whoaé #alue is determined by 1
income approach utilizing contractual cash flowd amarketbased interest rates to estimate the projectedngtiten value based on quo
bid/ask prices for similar unrated municipal boadsl, if any, real estate assets andsfe residential condominiums recorded at fair ealt
a nonfecurring basis as a result of our quarterly impaint analysis, which were valued using broker apirof value and substantiated
internal cash flow projections.

Our Level 3 liability is the fair value of our finaing obligations, which was estimated by the ineapproach to approximate the p
that would be paid in an orderly transaction betwemrket participants, utilizing: (1) contractuakh flows; (2) markebased interest rat:
and (3) a number of other assumptions including ateifor space, competition for customers, changesarket rental rates, costs
operation and expected ownership periods.
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

The following tables set forth the assets and litéds that we measure at fair value by level witttie fair value hierarchy. We deterrr
the level based on the lowest level of substaritipat used to determine fair value.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant Significant
Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
June 30, 2012 or Liabilities Inputs Inputs
Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair valye $ 17,33C % — 17,33( % —
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid
expenses and other assets) 3,09¢ 3,09¢ — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensekaiher assets) 15,37: — — 15,37:
Total Assets $ 35,80C $ 3,09¢ $ 17,33C $ 15,37
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiye $ 191824 $ — $ 191824 $ —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrxehses and other liabilities) 7,76% — 7,76% —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationg@tounts payable, accrued
expenses and other liabilities) 3,09¢ 3,09¢ — —
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 21,14 — — 21,14
Total Liabilities $ 1,950,24 % 3,09¢ $ 1,926,000 $ 21,14:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant Significant
December 31, Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
2011 or Liabilities Inputs Inputs
Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair valye $ 18,99 $ — % 18,99 $ —
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid
expenses and other assets) 3,14¢ 3,14¢ — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensekaiher assets) 14,78¢ — — 14,78¢
Impaired real estate assets and for-sale residentidominiums 12,767 — — 12,767
Total Assets $ 49,69 % 3,14¢  $ 18,99 $ 27,55¢
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vadye $ 199293 $ — $ 199293 % —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrxgehses and other liabilities) 2,20z — 2,20z —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationg@tounts payable, accrued
expenses and other liabilities) 3,14¢ 3,14¢ — —
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 18,86¢ — — 18,86¢
Total Liabilities $ 2017,15 % 3,14¢ $§ 1,995,113 % 18,86¢

(1) Amounts carried at historical cost on oun&aidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2012 andvibece31, 2011 , respectively.
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

The following table sets forth the changes in oewél 3 asset, which is recorded at fair value anGansolidated Balance Sheets on a
recurring basis:

Three Months Ended June

30, Six Months Ended June 30
2012 2011 2012 2011
Asset:
Tax Increment Financing Bond:
Beginning balance $ 15,07t $ 1556¢ $ 14,78¢ $ 15,69¢
Unrealized gains/(losses) (in AOCL) 29¢ (33€) 582 471
Ending balance $ 1537. $ 1522¢ $ 1537 $ 1522¢

In 2007, we acquired a tax increment financing bassbciated with a parking garage developed byhis.bond amortizes to maturity
2020 . The estimated fair value at June 30, 2012 $ta7 millionbelow the outstanding principal due on the bondhéfdiscount rate used
fair value this bond was 100 basis points highdower, the fair value of the bond would have b&6ré million lower or $0.6 milliorhigher
respectively, as of June 30, 2012Ve intend to hold this bond and have concluded tie will not be required to sell this bond be
recovery of the bond principal. Payment of the gipal and interest for the bond is guaranteed by\eshave recorded no credit losses re
to the bond during the three and six months endad 30, 2012 and 2011There is no legal right of offset with the liatyil which we repol
as a financing obligation, related to this tax @ment financing bond.

The following table sets forth quantitative infortioa about the unobservable inputs of our Leves8es which is recorded at fair va
on our Consolidated Balance Sheets on a recurasghb

Fair Value at Valuation Unobservable Discount
June 30, 2012 Technique Input Rate
Tax increment financing bond $ 15,371 Income approach Discount rate 9.85%
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10. Share-based Payment

During the six months ended June 30, 2012 , the p2om granted 190,88&tock options with an exercise price equal to tlsiac
market price of a share of its Common Stock ordite of grant. The fair value of each option giargstimated on the date of grant using
Black-Scholes option pricing model, which resulteca weighted average grant date fair value peresb&$ 5.47 . During thsix month:
ended June 30, 2012 , the Company also grante83®8J8ares of time-based restricted stock and 6/%&B8gs of total returbased restricte
stock with weighted average grant date fair valjpesshare of $ 32.27 and $ 38.71 , respectively.r¥¢erded stockased compensati
expense of $ 2.0 million and $ 1.4 million duride tthree months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011ectasyy, and $ 4.5 million and $.5
million during the six months ended June 30, 20d4@ 2011 , respectively. At June 30, 2012 , thers $&.6 millionof total unrecognize
stock-based compensation costs, which will be reizegl over a weighted average remaining contrattuad of 2.6 years.

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Los

The following table sets forth the components afumeulated other comprehensive loss:

Six Months Ended June 30,

2012 2011
Tax increment financing bond:
Beginning balance $ (2,309 $ (2,543
Unrealized gains/(losses) on tax increment finagndiond 58¢ 47y
Ending balance (1,726 (3,019
Cash flow hedges:
Beginning balance (3,425 (1,105
Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges (7,087 —
Amortization of cash flow hedges 1,45¢ (58)
Ending balance (9,059 (1,169
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (10,779 $ (4,177)
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12. Discontinued Operation:

The following table sets forth our operations whieljuired classification as discontinued operations

Three Months Ended June

30, Six Months Ended June 30
2012 2011 2012 2011

Rental and other revenues $ 204 $ 2907 $ 438 $ 6,16¢
Operating expenses:

Rental property and other expenses 96€ 1,39( 2,084 2,86:

Depreciation and amortization 32z T7¢€ 1,00¢ 1,65

Total operating expenses 1,28¢ 2,16¢ 3,092 451°

Income from discontinued operations 75¢€ 73¢ 1,291 1,65¢

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations 1,38t — 6,51¢ —

Total discontinued operations $§ 2141 % 73¢ §  781C § 1,65

The following table sets forth the major classeassfets and liabilities of our real estate andraihsets held for sale, net:

June 30, December 31,
2012 2011

Assets:
Land $ 3,84¢ $ 5,74¢
Buildings and tenant improvements 49,46( 65,86(
Accumulated depreciation (18,749 (23,91)
Net real estate assets 34,56¢ 47,69:
Accrued straight line rents receivable 1,49( 1,72¢
Deferred leasing costs, net 67¢€ 811
Prepaid expenses and other assets 17 10€
Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale $ 36,75 $ 50,33¢
Tenant security deposits, deferred rents and ad@osts1) $ 59t § 23¢

(1) Included in accounts payable, accrued expensesthed liabilities

As of June 30, 2012, real estate and other ass&i<dr sale, net, included five office propertisdNashville, TN and oneffice propert
in Kansas City, MO. As of December 31, 2011, resthi® and other assets held for sale, net, inclfideaffice properties in Nashville, Tl
one office property in Pinellas County, FL and aféice property and 96esidential units in Kansas City, MO. All of thepeopertie
qualified for discontinued operations.
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13. Earnings Per Unit

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per unit:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2012 2011 2012 2011
Earnings per Common Unit - basic:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 12,36( $ 13,69¢ $ 25028 $ 2523t
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéeem consolidated affiliates from continuing opéras (223 (182) (407) (305)
Distributions on Preferred Units (627) (1,622) (1,259 (3,299
Excess of Preferred Unit redemption/repurchase @gst carrying value — (1,895 — (1,895
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders 11,51C 10,00( 23,36¢ 19,73¢
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders 2,141 73¢ 7,81(C 1,65¢
Net income available for common unitholders $ 13657 $ 10,73¢ $ 31,17« $ 21,39
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Unit ighted average unitg) (2) 77,971 75,58¢ 77,06¢ 75,39¢
Earnings per Common Unit - basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 0.1t $ 0.1 $ 03C $ 0.2€
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders 0.0¢ 0.01 0.1C 0.0z
Net income available for common unitholders $ 0.1t $ 014 $ 04C $ 0.2¢
Earnings per Common Unit - diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 1236( $ 13,69¢ $ 25028 $ 2523t
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeem consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (229) (182) (407) (30%)
Distributions on Preferred Units (627) (1,627) (1,259 (3,299
Excess of Preferred Unit redemption/repurchase @gst carrying value — (1,89%) — (1,89%)
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders 11,51¢( 10,00( 23,36¢ 19,73¢
Income from discontinued operations available fammon unitholders 2,141 73¢ 7,81C 1,654
Net income available for common unitholders $ 1365 $ 10,73¢ $ 31,17« $ 21,39
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Unit givid average units) (2) 77,971 75,58¢ 77,06% 75,39
Add:
Stock options using the treasury method 141 202 12¢ 18t
Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Urdidjusted weighted average units and assumed
conversiong1) 78,11z 75,78¢ 77,19: 75,57¢
Earnings per Common Unit - diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 0.1t $ 0.1 $ 03C $ 0.2€
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders 0.0z 0.01 0.1C 0.0z

Net income available for common unitholders $ 017 $ 014 $ 04C $ 0.2¢

(1) There were 0.5 million and 0.3 million optiomststanding during the three months ended Jun2@(® and 2011 , respectively, and 0.5 million ar&l
million options outstanding during the six montheled June 30, 2012 and 20l1iespectively, that were not included in the cotapan of dilute
earnings per unit because the impact of includirg ©ptions would be anti-dilutive

(2) Includes all unvested restricted stock sing@ldnds on restricted stock are nfamfeitable
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14. Segment Information

The following table summarizes the rental and otkeenues and net operating income, the primanysitng propertylevel performanc
metric which is defined as rental and other reveress rental property and other expenses, for egootable segment:

Three Months Ended June

30, Six Months Ended June 30
2012 2011 2012 2011
Rental and Other Revenues(1)

Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 16,20¢ $ 12,34. $ 31,99 $ 24,24.
Greenville, SC 3,48¢ 3,43 6,99: 6,94
Kansas City, MO 3,56( 3,441 7,16: 6,96(
Memphis, TN 10,13( 10,077 20,26¢ 20,17¢
Nashville, TN 14,32 13,57: 28,18¢ 26,31t
Orlando, FL 2,75¢ 2,61¢ 5,44: 4,93¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 5,07 5,27: 10,15: 10,631
Pittsburgh, PA 9,11z — 18,19¢ —
Raleigh, NC 20,40( 20,10s 40,17¢ 39,42
Richmond, VA 12,09t 11,66¢ 23,60¢ 23,04¢
Tampa, FL 17,57¢ 17,06« 34,71¢ 33,43¢
Total Office Segment 114,72 99,59t 226,89t 196,11

Industrial:

Atlanta, GA 3,84¢ 4,02¢ 7,628 7,96z
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,087 2,82t 6,251 5,802
Total Industrial Segment 6,93¢ 6,85: 13,87 13,76¢

Retail:
Kansas City, MO 9,07t 8,20z 17,99¢ 17,10:
Total Retail Segment 9,07¢ 8,20z 17,99¢ 17,10¢
Total Rental and Other Revenues $ 130,73! $ 114,65. $ 258,76¢f $ 226,98
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14. Segment Information -Continued

Three Months Ended June

30, Six Months Ended June 30
2012 2011 2012 2011
Net Operating Income: (1)
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 1043 $ 7,98 $ 20,837 $ 15,45¢
Greenville, SC 2,052 2,06¢ 4,18¢ 4,14(
Kansas City, MO 2,18¢ 2,11« 4,521 4,25¢
Memphis, TN 5,84t 5,467 11,95! 11,21¢
Nashville, TN 9,84: 9,37¢ 19,50« 17,98¢
Orlando, FL 1,43: 1,28t 2,84¢ 2,44¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,221 3,45k 6,457 7,04¢
Pittsburgh, PA 4,63( — 8,911 —
Raleigh, NC 14,30: 14,28t 28,16¢ 27 AT:
Richmond, VA 8,541 8,23¢ 16,43: 16,08(
Tampa, FL 10,81¢ 10,56¢ 21,66¢ 20,67:
Total Office Segment 73,30¢ 64,83¢ 145,48: 126,77
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA 2,76: 3,004 5,65: 5,83
Piedmont Triad, NC 2,31( 2,10¢ 4,59¢ 4,32¢
Total Industrial Segment 5,07: 5,11: 10,25: 10,16¢
Retail:
Kansas City, MO 5,321 4,83¢ 10,86¢ 10,11¢
Total Retail Segment 5,321 4,83¢ 10,86¢ 10,11¢
Total Net Operating Income 83,70¢ 74,78 166,60: 147,05
Reconciliation to income from continuing operationsefore disposition of property and
condominiums and equity in earnings of unconsolidatd affiliates:
Depreciation and amortization (40,27¢) (32,689 (78,105 (65,627
General and administrative expense (8,959 (8,047 (18,699 (15,685
Interest expense (24,495 (23,907 (49,29)) (47,450
Other income 764 1,87¢ 2,994 3,74¢
Income from continuing operations before dispositid property and condominiums and equity in
earnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 10,73¢ § 12,02¢ $ 2349¢ § 22,04¢

(1) Net of discontinued operatiol
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15. Subsequent Event

In early July 2012 , the Company issued 451 8fdres of Common Stock from sales in the secondeguzf 2012 under our equity sé
agreements at an average gross sales price of2y38rShare raising net proceeds, after sales cesions and expenses, of $14.9 million .

On July 13, 2012 , we acquired two medical officegerties in Greensboro, NC for $16.4 milliolihe transaction included the issue
of approximately 77,000 Common Units. We expeceitpense approximately $0.1 million of costs reldtethis acquisition.

On July 13, 2012 , we sold five non-core officelthimgs in Nashville, TN for $41.0 millionWe expect to record gain on dispositiol
discontinued operations of $6.8 million relatedHis disposition.

On July 25, 2012 , we sold three GSA-leased bugliim Jackson, MS and Atlanta, GA for $86.5 milliowe expect to record gain
disposition of discontinued operations of $14.0lioml related to this disposition.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is a fully integrated, self-administesand selfmanaged equity REIT that provides leasing, managenaevelopmen
construction and other custometated services for our properties and for thiadtips. The Company conducts virtually all of itgities
through the Operating Partnership. The OperatingnBeship is managed by the Company, its sole gémartner. At June 30, 201 2we
owned or had an interest in 338 in-service offindustrial and retail properties, encompassing @xiprately 34.6 millionsquare feet, whic
includes one office property under development emmassing 203,008quare feet and a 12.5% interest in a 261,000 sqfioat office
property directly owned by the Company (not incldida the Operating Partnership's Consolidated FiahrStatements); nine farale
residential condominiums and a 21 rental residential property under developmé&yie are based in Raleigh, North Carolina, anc
properties and development land are located iniddprGeorgia, Mississippi, Missouri, North Carolirdennsylvania, South Caroli
Tennessee and Virginia. Additional information aboasi can be found on our websitenatw.highwoods.com Information on our website
not part of this Quarterly Report.

You should read the following discussion and analys conjunction with the accompanying Consolidaténancial Statements &
related notes contained elsewhere in this Quarkelyort.

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the information in this Quarterly Reportymeontain forwardeoking statements. Such statements include, iticodar,
statements about our plans, strategies and prespader this section. You can identify forward-lomk statements by our use of forward-
looking terminology such as “may,” “will,” “expeét;anticipate,” “estimate,” “continuedr other similar words. Although we believe that
plans, intentions and expectations reflected isuggested by such forwaloleking statements are reasonable, we cannot ageurthat ou
plans, intentions or expectations will be achiewsthen considering such forwatdeking statements, you should keep in mind thiofahg
important factors that could cause our actual tesaldiffer materially from those contained in doyward-looking statement:

» the financial condition of our customers could derate

e we may not be able to lease or release secondaj@mespace, defined as previously occupied spgatebecomes available for lee
quickly or on as favorable terms as old leases;

* we may not be able to lease our newly constructéldibgs as quickly or on as favorable terms agipélly anticipatec

* we may not be able to complete development, adgprisireinvestment, disposition or joint venturejpcts as quickly or on
favorable terms as anticipated,;

» development activity by our competitors in our &rig markets could result in an excessive supplyftite, industrial and rete
properties relative to customer demand,;

» our markets may suffer declines in economic grc
e unanticipated increases in interest rates coulckase our debt service co
e unanticipated increases in operating expenses cagdtively impact our operating rest

e we may not be able to meet our liquidity requiretaesr obtain capital on favorable terms to fund warking capital needs a
growth initiatives or to repay or refinance outstisug debt upon maturity; and

» the Company could lose key executive offic
This list of risks and uncertainties, however, @ imtended to be exhaustive. You should also revthe other cautionary statements
make in “ltem 1A. Business — Risk Factors” setHdr our 2011 Annual Report on Form KO-Given these uncertainties, you should

place undue reliance on forwalabking statements. We undertake no obligation ubliply release the results of any revisions tost
forward-looking statements to reflect any futuremt or circumstances or to reflect the occurrefieasmanticipated events.
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Executive Summary
Our Strategic Plan focuses on:
« owning highguality, differentiated real estate assets in &itel submarkets in our core mark

e improving the operating results of our existinggedies through concentrated leasing, asset maragenost control and custor
service efforts;

» developing and acquiring office properties in kefili submarkets that improve the overall quality aur portfolio and genere
attractive returns over the long-term for our stuamllers;

» selectively disposing of properties no longer cdesed to be core assets primarily due to locatge, quality and overall strate
fit; and

* maintaining a conservative, flexible balance shé#t ample liquidity to meet our funding needs gmdwth prospect

While we own and operate a limited number of indaktretail and residential properties, our opegtresults depend heavily
successfully leasing and operating our office priggg Economic growth and employment levels in cane markets are and will continue
be important determinative factors in predicting future operating results.

The key components affecting our rental and otkgemues are average occupancy, rental rates, neslogeents placed in servi
acquisitions and dispositions. Average occupancegly increases during times of improving ecormgrowth, as our ability to lease sp
outpaces vacancies that occur upon the expiratibegisting leases. Average occupancy generalljirtescduring times of slower econor
growth, when new vacancies tend to outpace ouityalil lease space. Asset acquisitions, dispositamd new developments placed in se
directly impact our rental revenues and could impmag average occupancy, depending upon the occypate of the properties that
acquired, sold or placed in service. A further aador of the predictability of future revenuestie expected lease expiration schedule o
portfolio. As a result, in addition to seeking tiease our average occupancy by leasing curreanvapace, we also must concentrate
leasing efforts on renewing leases on expiring spac

Whether or not our rental revenue tracks averagapancy proportionally depends upon whether remtteunew leases signed are hig
or lower than the rents under the previous leasesualized rental revenues from second generadiasds signed during any particular
are generally less than 15% of our total annughbteaevenues. During the second quarter of 2018 leased 0.6 milliosquare feet of seco
generation office space, defined as space previameslupied under our ownership that becomes aveifal lease or acquired vacant sp
with a weighted average term of 4.4 years. On @eerienant improvements for such leases were $3@®P8quare foot, lease commiss|
were $2.65 per square foot and rent concessions $265 per square foot. Annualized GAAP rents usdeh office leases were $21.[7é
square foot, or 2.6% higher than under previousdea

We strive to maintain a diverse, stable and credlifay customer base. We have an internal guidelinereby customers that account
more than 3% of our revenues are periodically reetk with the Company's Board of Directors. Curgntio customer accounts for m
than 3% of our revenues other than the Federal @owent , which accounts for 9.0% of our revenuwes,of June 30, 2012. After 1
disposition of three GSA-leased buildings on Jdy 2012, the Federal Government accounts for 7 Détiorevenues .

Our expenses primarily consist of rental propentpemses, depreciation and amortization, general andinistrative expenses ¢
interest expense. From time to time, expensesimttade impairments of assets held for use. Rgrtgberty expenses aegpenses associa
with our ownership and operation of rental progsrtand include expenses that vary somewhat propatély to occupancy levels, suct
common area maintenance and utilities, and expehaeslo not vary based on occupancy, such as gyoees and insurance. Deprecia
and amortization is a notash expense associated with the ownership oforegerty and generally remains relatively consiseath yea
unless we buy, place in service or sell assetsesime depreciate our properties and related bgjldind tenant improvement assets 1
straightline basis over a fixed life. General and admiatbfie expenses, net of amounts capitalized, copsistarily of management a
employee salaries and other personnel costs, @igpoverhead and long-term incentive compensation.
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We intend to maintain a conservative and flexibddahce sheet that allows us to capitalize on falerdevelopment and acquisit
opportunities as they arise. As of June 30, 20d2 mortgages and notes payable represented 4af.9€ undepreciated book value of
assets. We expect this ratio to remain under 508fagithe remainder of 2012 .

Results of Operations
Three Months Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011
Rental and Other Revenues

Rental and other revenues from continuing operativare $16.1 million , or 14.0% , higher in them®t quarter of 2013s compared
2011primarily due to the acquisitions of office propestin Pittsburgh, PA and Atlanta, GA in the thipgarter of 2011 and an office prope
in Raleigh, NC in the second quarter of 2012, wiidhflectively accounted for $12.5 million of theciease. In addition, same prop:
revenues were $3.5 million higher in the secondtguaf 2012 as compared to 20ffdmarily due to an increase in same property aa
occupancy and annualized GAAP rents per squareffoot 89.9% and $18.54 in the second quarter ofL20191.4% and $18.8@ the
second quarter of 201,2espectively, higher operating expense recovehigesto higher operating expenses, higher net tetion fees due
an early termination at an office property in AtnGA and lower bad debts. We expect rental ahdratevenues for the remainder of 2012
adjusted for any discontinued operations and amditiacquisition activity, to be higher comparedhe same period in 20Jtimarily due t
the contribution of acquisitions made in the thipdarter of 2011, partly offset by slightly loweresmge occupancy in our same prog
portfolio as a result of the early termination dissed above.

Operating Expenses

Rental property and other expenses were $7.2 mijlar 17.9% , higher in the second quarter of 284 2ompared to 20%&kimarily due
to recent acquisitions, which accounted for $5.Biani of the increase. In addition, same propeggmting expenses were $1.6 millioighe!
in the second quarter of 2012 as compared to P@itiarily due to higher repairs and maintenanciities and insurance costs, partly off
by lower real estate taxes. We expect rental ptp@erd other expenses for the remainder of 20d@justed for any discontinued operat
and additional acquisition activity, to be highengared to the same period in 2Qdimarily due to the contribution of acquisitionsde ir
the third quarter of 2011.

Operating margin, defined as rental and other neegress rental property and other expenses exgressa percentage of rental
other revenues, was lower at 64.0% in the secoadeuof 2012 , as compared to 65.2% in the seqoiagter of 2011 Operating margin
expected to be similar for the remainder of 2012ampared to the same period in 2011 .

Depreciation and amortization was $7.6 million ,28:2% , higher in the second quarter of 2012 aspeawed to 201 primarily due t
recent acquisitions, which accounted for $5.4 willof the increase. In addition, same property elgiption and amortization w&4..9 millior
higher in the second quarter of 2012 as compare2Did primarily due to an early termination. We expecpréeiation expense for t
remainder of 2012 adjusted for any discontinued operations andtiaaail acquisition activity, to be higher compatecthe same period
2011 primarily due to the contribution of acquimits made in the third quarter of 2011.

General and administrative expenses were $0.9omillior 11.6% , higher in the second quarter of2284 compared to 20 &kimarily
due to higher salaries and incentive compensatm.expect general and administrative expenseshforémainder of 2012 adjusted fc
additional acquisition activity, to decrease over s$ame period in 2011 due to lower dead deal esaisition costs.

Other Income

Other income was $1.1 million lower in the secondrter of 2012 as compared to 2G&inarily due to a loss on debt extinguishmel
outstanding bonds in 2012.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $0.6 million , or 2.5% , highehe second quarter of 2012 as compared to pdibiarily due to higher avera
debt balances from recent acquisitions, offsetdwel average interest rates and financing obligaititerest expense. We anticipate inte
expense will increase for the remainder of 2012@spared to the same period in 2ade to the full year impact of higher average
balances from acquisitions, partly offset by lowgerage interest rates on our outstanding borrasvamgl lower financing obligation inter
expense in 2012 .

49




Table of Contents

Net Gains on Disposition of Discontinued Operations

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operatimese $1.4 million higher in the second quarteP@12 as compared to 20dile to th
disposition of an office property in Pinellas CoyrfL in the second quarter of 2012.

Dividends on Preferred Stock and Excess of Preferred Stock Redemption/Repurchase Cost Over Carrying Value

Dividends on Preferred Stock were $1.0 million lowethe second quarter of 2012 as compared to 20@ilexcess of Preferred St
redemption/repurchase cost over carrying value ds9 million lower in the second quarter of 2012 ampared to 201dlue to th
redemption of all remaining Series B Preferred 8ham the second quarter of 2011.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011
Rental and Other Revenues

Rental and other revenues from continuing operatioere $31.8 million , or 14.0% , higher in thesffisix months of 201d8s compared
the same period in 20timarily due to the acquisitions of office propestin Pittsburgh, PA and Atlanta, GA in the thipgarter of 2011 ar
an office property in Raleigh, NC in the secondrtgraof 2012, which accounted for $24.6 millionthé increase. Same property revel
were $6.7 million higher in the first six months2812 as compared to the same period in 26irharily due to an increase in same prof
average occupancy and annualized GAAP rents parasdaot from 90.1% and $18.38 in the first six insnof 2011 to 91.1% and $18.if8
the first six months of 2012 , higher operatingenge recoveries and higher net termination fees.

Operating Expenses

Rental property and other expenses were $12.50mijlior 15.6% , higher in the first six months 6fl2as compared to the same pe
in 2011 primarily due to recent acquisitions, whadtounted for $11.5 million of the increase. Saraperty operating expenses w&@7
million higher in the first six months of 2012 asngpared to the same period in 2Qdrimarily due to higher repairs and maintenancds;
offset by lower utilities from the mild winter ir022 and lower real estate taxes.

Operating margin, defined as rental and other neegress rental property and other expenses expgressa percentage of rental
other revenues, was lower at 64.3% in the firshsdnths of 2012 , as compared to 64.8% in the irsstnonths of 2011 .

Depreciation and amortization was $12.5 milliorr 16.0% , higher in the first six months of 2042 compared to the same perio
2011 primarily due to recent acquisitions, which accednfor $10.1 million of the increase. In additimame property depreciation ¢
amortization was $2.2 million higher in the firdk snonths of 2012 as compared to the same perio20il primarily due to an ear
termination.

General and administrative expenses were $2.8omillior 17.8% , higher in the first six months 6fl2as compared to the same pe
in 2011 primarily due to higher salaries and incentompensation.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $1.8 million , or 3.9% , highehe first six months of 2012 as compared ®ghme period in 203drimarily due
to higher average debt balances from recent atigmisj offset by lower average interest rates ameghting obligation interest expense.

Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates v@s5 million lower in the first six months of 2088 compared to the same perio
2011 primarily due to our share of impairment &l restate assets on two office properties in ouF Djoint venture.

Net Gains on Disposition of Discontinued Operations

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operatinmese $6.5 million higher in the first six month§ 2012 as compared to the sa
period in 2011due to the disposition of 96 rental residentialtaiim Kansas City, MO in the first quarter of 20d:2d an office property
Pinellas County, FL in the second quarter of 2012.
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Dividends on Preferred Stock and Excess of Preferred Stock Redemption/Repurchase Cost Over Carrying Value
Dividends on Preferred Stock were $2.0 million lovrethe first six months of 2012 as compared ® shme period in 201dnd exces

of Preferred Stock redemption/repurchase cost oagying value was $1.9 million lower in the fisk months of 2012s compared to tl
same period in 2011 due to the redemption of allaiaing Series B Preferred Shares in the secondeguat 2011.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

Our goal is to maintain a conservative and flexidéance sheet with access to multiple sourcebf @nd equity capital and suffici
availability under our revolving credit facility. 8/generally use rents received from customers mal four operating expenses, caj
expenditures and distributions. To fund propertywgitions, development activity or building rentiwas and repay debt upon maturity,
may use current cash balances, sell assets, at#airdebt and/or issue equity. Our debt generalhsists of mortgage debt, unsecured
securities and borrowings under our revolving drésdiility.
Statements of Cash Flows

We report and analyze our cash flows based on tipgractivities, investing activities and financiagtivities. The following table s¢

forth the changes in the Company’s cash flows (Bdausands):

Six Months Ended June 30,

2012 2011 Change
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities $ 93,32¢ $ 87,59 $ 5,73
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (39,029 (78,919 39,88¢
Net Cash Used In Financing Activities (58,965 (13,649 (45,31¢)
Total Cash Flows $ (4661 $ (4,967 $ 30¢€

In calculating net cash related to operating ati¢isj depreciation and amortization, which are nash expenses, are added back t
income. As a result, we have historically generagubsitive amount of cash from operating actisitierom period to period, cash flow fr
operations depends primarily upon changes in otrinewme, as discussed more fully above under “Resi Operations,’changes i
receivables and payables, and net additions oredses in our overall portfolio, which affect thecamt of depreciation and amortizat
expense.

Net cash related to investing activities generadlgtes to capitalized costs incurred for leasing @ajor building improvements and
acquisition, development, disposition and joint tuea capital activity. During periods of signifidanet acquisition and/or developm
activity, our cash used in such investing actigitigll generally exceed cash provided by investagvities, which typically consists of ce
received upon the sale of properties and distidimstiof capital from our joint ventures.

Net cash related to financing activities generadliates to distributions, incurrence and repayneértebt, and issuances, repurchass
redemptions of Common Stock, Common Units and PedeStock. As discussed previously, we use a fégmit amount of our cash to fu
distributions. Whether or not we have increasdhénoutstanding balances of debt during a peripedgs generally upon the net effect of
acquisition, disposition, development and joint tuea activity. We generally use our revolving ctefdicility for working capital purpose
which means that during any given period, in otdeminimize interest expense, we may record sigaifi repayments and borrowings ur
our revolving credit facility.

The change in net cash related to operating defvih the first six months of 2012 as comparethéosame period in 20Mas primarily
due to net operating income from acquisitions madke third quarter of 2011, partly offset by tiaing of real estate tax payments.

The change in net cash related to investing aigsvin the first six months of 2012 as compareth&éosame period in 20Mas primarily
due to a loan to an unconsolidated affiliate ingbeond quarter of 2011 and higher net proceeds tine disposition of real estate assets il
first six months of 2012, partly offset by highapital expenditures in the first six months of 20&ted to recent acquisitions.

The change in net cash related to financing a#&in the first six months of 2012 as comparethéosame period in 20Mas primaril

due to higher net repayments of borrowings in ih&t §ix months of 2012, partly offset by higheopeeds from the issuance of Comt
Stock in the first six months of 2012 and the repase of Preferred Stock in the second quartedbf 2
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Capitalization

The following table sets forth the Company’s cdjztdion (in thousands, except per share amounts):

June 30, December 31,
2012 2011

Mortgages and notes payable, at recorded book value $ 1,823,122 $ 1,903,21
Financing obligations $ 30,82: $ 31,44«
Preferred Stock, at liquidation value $ 29,077 $ 29,077
Common Stock outstanding 75,61¢ 72,64¢
Common Units outstanding (not owned by the Company) 3,711 3,73(
Per share stock price at period end $ 3368 % 29.67
Market value of Common Stock and Common Units $ 266945 $ 2,266,13
Total market capitalization $ 455248 $ 4,229,86!

At June 30, 2012 , our mortgages and notes payapitesented 40.0% of our total market capitalizatiod consisted of $743.5 milliafi
secured indebtedness with a weighted average sttexte of 5.50% and $1,079.6 millioh unsecured indebtedness with a weighted av
interest rate of 4.77% The secured indebtedness was collateralized alyestate assets with an aggregate undepreciatd yaue o
$1,237.7 million .

Current and Future Cash Needs

Rental and other revenues are our principal soofrfends to meet our short-term liquidity requirertee Other sources of funds for short-
term liquidity needs include available working dapand borrowings under our existing revolvingdiréacility, which had $ 446.8 millioof
availability at July 19, 2012 . Our shderm liquidity requirements primarily consist ofeyating expenses, interest and principal amortiz
on our debt, dividends and distributions and cgitpenditures, including building improvement gpgenant improvement costs and l¢
commissions. Building improvements are capital £dst maintain existing buildings not typically reld to a specific customer. Ten
improvements are the costs required to customiaeesfor the specific needs of customers. We aatieiphat our available cash and ¢
equivalents and cash provided by operating aawitiogether with cash available from borrowingdasrour revolving credit facility, will k
adequate to meet our short-term liquidity requiretae

Our longterm liquidity uses generally consist of the retient or refinancing of debt upon maturity (incluglimortgage debt, o
revolving and construction credit facilities, tetaans and other unsecured debt), funding of exjsiind new building development or i
infrastructure projects and funding acquisition$oiidings and development land. Additionally, waynfrom time to time, retire some or
of our remaining outstanding Preferred Stock andfiesecured debt securities through redemptionsn oparket repurchases, prival
negotiated acquisitions or otherwise.

We expect to meet our long-term liquidity needstigh a combination of:

» cash flow from operating activitie

e borrowings under our revolving credit facili

» the issuance of unsecured d

» the issuance of secured di

» the issuance of equity securities by the Compart@Operating Partnership; ¢

» the disposition of nogere asset
Recent Acquisition and Disposition Activity

During the second quarter of 2012 , we acquired@&3D0square foot office property in Cary, NC from our IPLjoint venture for a

agreed upon value of $26.0 million .
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During the second quarter of 2012 , we sold a rme-office property in Pinellas County, FL for gsgzroceeds of $ 9.5 millionWe
recorded gain on disposition of discontinued openatof $ 1.4 million related to this disposition.

On July 13, 2012 , we acquired two medical officegerties in Greensboro, NC for $16.4 millioiihe transaction included the issue
of approximately 77,000 Common Units. We expeatxpense approximately $0.1 milliarf costs related to this acquisition. In additiore
expect to acquire a third related medical officeparty in Greensboro, NC for an additional $13.4liom in the third quarter of 2012. Ti
purchase price will include the assumption of sedwtebt recorded at fair value of $7.9 milliowith an estimated effective interest rat
3.5% , including amortization of deferred financicasts. This assumed debt is scheduled to matukagaost 2014 .

On July 13, 2012 , we sold five non-core officelthimgs in Nashville, TN for $41.0 millionWe expect to record gain on dispositiol
discontinued operations of $6.8 million relatedHis disposition.

On July 25, 2012 , we sold three GSA-leased buglliim Jackson, MS and Atlanta, GA for $86.5 milliowe expect to record gain
disposition of discontinued operations of $14.0ionil related to this disposition.

Recent Financing Activity

We have entered into separate ATM Equity Offednéales Agreements (the “Sales Agreementsth each of Merrill Lynch, Pierc
Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Mitsubishi UFJ Sedesi{USA), Inc., Morgan Keegan & Company, Inc. &BIC Capital Markets, LLC (eac
an “Agent” and, together, the “Agents’Q)inder the terms of the Sales Agreements, the Compuaay offer and sell shares of its Comr
Stock from time to time through the Agents, actasgyagents of the Company or as principals. Saléseohares, if any, may be made
means of ordinary brokers' transactions on the Mevk Stock Exchange or otherwise at market pricevailing at the time of sale, at pri
related to prevailing market prices or at negotigigces or as otherwise agreed with any of thendggeSubject to the terms and condition
each Sales Agreement, each Agent will use its cawially reasonable efforts to sell on the Compabgkalf any shares to be offered by
Company under that Sales Agreement. During therskgoarter of 2012 , the Company issued 1,836&&8es of Common Stock un
these agreements at an average gross sales pi&83¥2 per share raising net proceeds, aftes salmmissions and expenses, db13(
million . We paid an aggregate of $ 0.9 millionsales commissions to Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fem& Smith Incorporated and Mitsubi:
UFJ Securities (USA), Inc. during the second quiat012 . In early July 2012 , the Company issdigtl,300shares of Common Stock fr
sales in the first quarter of 2012 under theseeagents at an average gross sales price of $3@b62hare raising net proceeds, after
commissions and expenses, of $14.9 million . We $8i2 million in sales commissions to MitsubistiJUSecurities (USA), Inc. durintuly
2012.

Our $ 475.0 million unsecured revolving credit fagiis scheduled to mature on July 27, 20drid includes an accordion feature
allows for an additional $ 75.0 millioof borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occu
we have an option to extend the maturity for aniteadthl year. The interest rate at our current treatings isLIBOR plus 150 basis poir
and the annual facility fee is 35 basis points. rterest rate and facility fee are based on tighdr of the publicly announced ratings fi
Moody's Investors Service or Standard & Poor'srigatiServices. We use our revolving credit faciiiyworking capital purposes and for
shortterm funding of our development and acquisitionivétgt and, in certain instances, the repayment thieo debt. Continuing ability
borrow under the revolving credit facility allows to quickly capitalize on strategic opportunitshort-term interest rates. There watb®
million and $ 28.1 million outstanding under ouvetving credit facility at June 30, 2012 and Ju$; 2012 , respectively. At bothune 3(
2012 and July 19, 2012 , we had $ 0.1 millaroutstanding letters of credit, which reducesahailability on our revolving credit facility. 4
a result, the unused capacity of our revolving itritility at June 30, 2012 and July 19, 2012 \§a399.4 million and $ 446.8 million
respectively.

In the second quarter of 2012 , we repurchasedl$hillion principal amount of unsecured notes duardh 2017bearing interest
5.85% for a purchase price of 107.5% of par valMe.recorded $1.0 million of loss on debt extinguisimt related to this repurchase.

We regularly evaluate the financial condition oé tlenders that participate in our credit facilitigsing publicly available informatic
Based on this review, we currently expect our lesdehich are major financial institutions, to perh their obligations under our exist
facilities.

Covenant Compliance

We are currently in compliance with the covenamtd ather requirements with respect to our outstapdiebt. Although we expect
remain in compliance with these covenants andgdtipat least the next year, depending upon durdwperating
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performance, property and financing transactiond ganeral economic conditions, we cannot assuretlyatiwe will continue to be
compliance.

Our revolving credit facility and bank term loansquire us to comply with customary operating comsisand various financi
requirements. Upon an event of default on the rémnglcredit facility, the lenders having at leaét % of the total commitments under
revolving credit facility can accelerate all boriags then outstanding, and we could be prohibitethfborrowing any further amounts un
our revolving credit facility, which would advergadffect our ability to fund our operations.

The Operating Partnership has $379.1 million cagyamount of 2017 bonds outstanding and $200.0omidarrying amount of 20:
bonds outstanding. The indenture that governs thatstanding notes requires us to comply with ausiy operating covenants and vari
financial ratios. The trustee or the holders deast 25.0%n principal amount of either series of bonds ceceerate the principal amount
such series upon written notice of a default teatains uncured after 60 days.

We may not be able to repay, refinance or exterydoarall of our debt at maturity or upon any accatien. If any refinancing is done
higher interest rates, the increased interest esgpeauld adversely affect our cash flow and abititypay distributions. Any such refinanc
could also impose tighter financial ratios and otmvenants that restrict our ability to take atsidhat could otherwise be in our best inte
such as funding new development activity, makingasfunistic acquisitions, repurchasing our seasitir paying distributions.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

In 2011, we provided a $ 38.3 million interestly secured loan to our DLF | joint venture thaigmally was scheduled to mature
March 2012 . The loan bears interest at LIBOR Blo@ basis points . The maturity date of the loanli®en extended to September 30, 2012
In the second quarter of 201%e acquired an office property from the joint item by reducing the balance of the advance duws foom th
joint venture joint venture. We deferred our shafehe gain recorded by the joint venture relatedhis transaction. We recorded inte
income from this loan in interest and other incamié0.2 million and $0.3 million during the threeonths ended June 30, 2012 and 2011
respectively, and $0.7 million and $0.3 million ihgr the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 20dspectively.

In the second quarter of 2012 , our DLF Il joinhiugre obtained a $50.0 million , thregear secured mortgage loan from a third
lender, bearing a fixed interest rate of 3.5% of..$3nillion of the loan and a floating interesteratf LIBOR plus 250 basis points $10.¢
million of the loan, which was used by the jointhtigre to repay a secured loan at maturity to al thérty lender.

There were no other significant changes to oubafince sheet arrangements in the three monthsl e 30, 2012For informatiol
regarding our off balance sheet arrangements a¢ieer 31, 2011 , see Note 9 to the ConsolidateanEial Statements in our 20Ahnua
Report on Form 10-K.

Critical Accounting Estimates

There were no changes made by management to tlwlcaiccounting policies in the six months endedel30, 2012 For a descriptic
of our critical accounting estimates, see “ManagaaeDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditeord Results of OperationsCritical
Accounting Estimates” in our 2011 Annual ReportFammm 10-K.

Non-GAAP Measures - FFO and NOI

The Company believes that Funds from Operations@'F and FFO per share are beneficial to managementredtors and a
important indicators of the performance of any 8gREIT. Because FFO and FFO per share calculaggolide such factors as deprecial
amortization and impairment of real estate asselggains or losses from sales of operating reatesissets, which can vary among owne
identical assets in similar conditions based onohisal cost accounting and useful life estimategy facilitate comparisons of operal
performance between periods and between other REWBnagement believes that historical cost accagnfor real estate assets
accordance with GAAP implicitly assumes that thtugeaof real estate assets diminishes predictably twme. Since real estate values t
historically risen or fallen with market conditigneany industry investors and analysts have coresidthe presentation of operating res
for real estate companies that use historical @osbunting to be insufficient on a staaldne basis. As a result, management believegtt
use of FFO and FFO per share, together with theined] GAAP presentations, provides a more completderstanding of the Compar
performance relative to its competitors and a miof@med and appropriate basis on which to makeés@ats involving operating, financii
and investing activities.
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FFO and FFO per share are r@AAP financial measures and therefore do not regmaiset income or net income per share as defig
GAAP. Net income and net income per share as difiyeGAAP are the most relevant measures in deténgnithe Company's operat
performance because FFO and FFO per share inctjdstments that investors may deem subjective, sschdding back expenses suc
depreciation, amortization and impairment. Furtheen FFO per share does not depict the amountattwaties directly to the stockhold
benefit. Accordingly, FFO and FFO per share shoider be considered as alternatives to net incametancome per share as indicator
the Company's operating performance.

The Company's presentation of FFO is consistertt WEO as defined by the National Association of IREstate Investment Tru:
(“NAREIT™), which is calculated as follows:

* Netincome/(loss) computed in accordance with G/
e Less net income attributable to noncontrolling iests in consolidated affiliate
» Plus depreciation and amortization of depreciaplerating propertie

» Less gains, or plus losses, from sales of depriecigerating properties, plus impairments on depbde operating properties &
excluding items that are classified as extraorgiitams under GAAP;

* Plus or minus our proportionate share of adjustmeéntiuding depreciation and amortization of dejaiele operating properties,
unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventureseflect funds from operations on the same basig); a

* Plus or minus adjustments for depreciation and #mation and gains/(losses) on sales of depreciapkrating properties, pl
impairments on depreciable operating propertiesi aoncontrolling interests in consolidated affdistrelated to discontinu
operations.

In calculating FFO, the Company excludes net incattgbutable to noncontrolling interests in thee@giing Partnership, which 1
Company believes is consistent with standard imgystactice for REITs that operate through an UPR&tucture. The Company belier
that it is important to present FFO on ancasverted basis since all of the Common Units mated by the Company are redeemable
one-for-one basis for shares of its Common Stock.

The following table sets forth the Company's FF@ BRO per share ($ in thousands, except per shavards):

Three Months Ended June

30, Six Months Ended June 30
2012 2011 2012 2011

Funds from operations:
Net income $ 14,496 $ 1443 $ 3283 $ 26,87
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéseim consolidated affiliates (223%) (182 (407) (305)
Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 39,85¢ 32,22¢ 77,14 64,72¢
Unconsolidated affiliates:

Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 1,67¢ 2,032 3,77% 4,12¢

Impairment of depreciable properties — — 1,00z —
Discontinued operations:

Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 322 T7€ 1,00¢ 1,65¢

(Gains) on disposition of depreciable properties (1,385 — (6,519 —
Funds from operations 54,74: 49,28t 108,82¢ 97,07¢
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (1,629 (1,254 (3,299
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption/repurchageoges carrying value — (2,895 — (1,895
Funds from operations available for common stockhalers $ 54,11« ¢ 4577, $ 107,57- $ 91,88t
Funds from operations available for common stockhalers per share $ 0.6 $ 06C $ 13¢ ¢ 1.21
Weighted average shares outstanding) 78,52 76,19. 77,60: 75,98,

(1) Includes assumed conversion of all potentiallytdieiCommon Stock equivaler
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In addition, the Company believes net operatingoine from continuing operations (“NOI"and same property NOI are usi
supplemental measures of the Compangioperty operating performance because such anepriovide a performance measure of
revenues and expenses directly involved in own@a estate assets and provides a perspective nadiately apparent from net income
FFO. The Company defines NOI as rental and otheemees from continuing operations, less rental @rtypand other expenses fr
continuing operations. The Company defines cash &N Ol less straight line rent and lease ternondies. Other REITs may use diffel
methodologies to calculate NOI and same property. NO

Our same property portfolio currently consists 8% 2n-service office, industrial and retail propestencompassing 26.4 milliaguar
feet that were wholly owned during the entiretytlodé periods presented (from January 1, 2011 to 30n2012). In our most recent pri
periodic report, our 2011 Annual Report, our sameperty portfolio consisted of 289 service office, industrial and retail proper
encompassing 26.2 million square feet that werellywtlovned during the entirety of the periods prdedntherein (from January 1, 201®
December 31, 2011 ). The change in our same psopertfolio was due to the addition of one officeoperty encompassing.3 million
square feet acquired during 2010 and three newlgldped office properties encompassing 0.5 milkgoare feet placed in service dul
2010, offset by the removal of six office propestencompassing 0.6 million square feet qualiffangliscontinued operations during 2012 .

Rental and other revenues related to propertiegwmmir same property portfolio were $17.3 milliand $4.8 million for the¢hree month
ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 , respectively, alddB fdillion and $8.7 million for the six months emud June 30, 2012 and 2011
respectively. Rental property and other expendaserkto properties not in our same property pbafaere $8.3 million and $2.6 milliofor
the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 201 peatdeely, and $16.8 million and $5.0 million fdret six months ended June 30, 2@h2
2011, respectively.

The following table sets forth the Company’s NOtilaame property NOI:

Three Months Ended June

30, Six Months Ended June 30
2012 2011 2012 2011
Income from continuing operations before dispositia of property and condominiums and equity
in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 10,73¢ $ 12,02¢ $ 23,49¢ $ 22,04¢
Other (income) (764) (1,875 (2,999 (3,74%
Interest expense 24,49t 23,90: 49,297 47,45(
General and administrative expense 8,90( 7,97¢ 18,57: 15,77:
Depreciation and amortization expense 40,27¢ 32,68¢ 78,10t 65,62
Net operating income from continuing operations 83,64¢ 74,72( 166,48( 147,14
Less — non same property and other net operatoayia 9,08( 2,07t 17,00: 3,64¢
Total same property net operating income from contiuing operations $ 74566 $ 72,64F $ 149,47 $ 143,49
Rental and other revenues $ 130,73! $ 114,65. $ 258,76¢ $ 226,98:
Rental property and other expenses 47,08¢ 39,93 92,28¢ 79,83¢
Total net operating income from continuing operatims 83,64¢ 74,72( 166,48( 147,14
Less — non same property and other net operataayria 9,08( 2,07t 17,00: 3,64¢
Total same property net operating income from confiuing operations $ 74566 $ 72,64t $ 149,477 $ 143,49:
Total same property net operating income from cwiig operations $ 74566 $ 72,64F $ 149,47 $ 143,49
Less — straight line rent and lease termination fee 3,53¢ 2,851 7,45¢ 6,36¢
Same property cash net operating income from contiring operations $ 71,03 § 69,79« § 142,01¢ § 137,13(
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AB OUT MARKET RISK

For information regarding our market risk as of aB1, 2012, see "Quantitative and Qualitative Dmares About Market Risk" in o
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterlyipiended March 31, 2012.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

SEC rules require us to maintain disclosure costold procedures that are designed to ensurenfbamniation required to be disclosec
our annual and periodic reports filed with the SECecorded, processed, summarized and reportddnviiie time periods specified in
SEC's rules and forms. The Company's CEO and CH® bancluded that the disclosure controls and phaws of the Company and
Operating Partnership were each effective at tideoéthe period covered by this Quarterly Report.

SEC rules also require us to establish and maintaérnal control over financial reporting designedprovide reasonable assure
regarding the reliability of financial reporting cathe preparation of financial statements for exdepurposes in accordance with gene
accepting accounting principles. There were no gbarin internal control over financial reportingridg the three months endddne 3(
2012that materially affected, or are reasonably likelymaterially affect, the Company's internal cohtrneer financial reporting. There we
also no changes in internal control over financegdorting during the three months ended June 302 #fat materially affected, or ¢
reasonably likely to materially affect, the OpangtPartnership's internal control over financiglaging.
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PART Il

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

During the second quarter of 2012 , the Companyeidsin aggregate of 16,38bares of Common Stock to holders of Common Un
the Operating Partnership upon the redemption dikex number of Common Units in private offeringseexpt from the registratic
requirements pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Stesrict. Each of the holders of Common Units wasaecredited investor under Rule !
of the Securities Act. The resale of such sharesragistered by the Company under the Securitiés Ac

ITEM 5. OTHER EVENTS

As a result of adopting a new accounting pronourssgnin the first quarter of 2012, we have presem@aprehensive income ir
separate financial statement entitled Consolid8tatements of Comprehensive Income. The table bedfiects the retrospective applical
of this new accounting pronouncement, which didhrte a material impact on our financial conditiwnesults of operations.

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Comprehensive income/(loss):
Net income 4797:  $ 72,30 $ 61,69/
Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Unrealized gains/(losses) on tax increment finagndiond 234 a77) 298
Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges (2,209 — 937
Amortization of cash flow hedges (11¢) 237 (249)
Sale of cash flow hedge related to dispositiomeéstment in unconsolidated affiliate — 10z —
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) (2,08¢) 165 981
Total comprehensive income 45,88t 72,46¢ 62,67¢
Less-comprehensive (income) attributable to norrotlinty interests (2,846 (3,805 (3,209
Comprehensive income attributable to the Company 43,03¢ $ 68,66. $ 59,46’
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
Exhibit
Number Description
12.1 Statement re: Computation of Ratios of the Company
12.2 Statement re: Computation of Ratios of the Opega#artnership
31.1 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 302 of 8z@bane©xley Act for the Company
31.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 302 of §#abane®©xley Act for the Company
31.3 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 302 of 8z@bane©xley Act for the Operating Partnership
31.4 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 302 of §zbane®©xley Act for the Operating Partnership
32.1 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 906 of 8z@bane©xley Act for the Company
32.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 906 of #zbane®©xley Act for the Company
32.3 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 906 of 8sebane©xley Act for the Operating Partnership
32.4 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 906 of #aebane©xley Act for the Operating Partnership

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation LinldeaDocument

101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen

101.LAB XBRL Extension Labels Linkbase

101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, each of the registrants has dalysed this report to be signed o
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Highwoods Properties, Inc.

By: /s/ Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership
By: Highwoods Properties, Inc., its sole genegatmer

By: Is/ Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: July 26, 2012
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Exhibit 12.1

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND
PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

Six Months Ended
June 30, 2012

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 23,67¢
Fixed charges 50,36«
Capitalized interest (327)
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &iféés 2,22¢
Total earnings $ 75,93¢

Fixed charges and Preferred Stock dividends:

Contractual interest expense $ 47,591
Amortization of deferred financing costs 1,80z
Financing obligations interest expense (96)
Capitalized interest 327
Interest component of rental expense 74C
Total fixed charges 50,36¢
Preferred Stock dividends 1,25¢
Total fixed charges and Preferred Stock dividends $ 51,61¢
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 1.51

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Pferred Stock dividends 1.47




Exhibit 12.2

HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND
PREFERRED UNIT DISTRIBUTIONS

Six Months Ended
June 30, 2012

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 23,67¢
Fixed charges 50,36¢
Capitalized interest (327)
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &iféés 2,211
Total earnings $ 75,92:

Fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions:

Contractual interest expense $ 47,59
Amortization of deferred financing costs 1,802
Financing obligations interest expense (96)
Capitalized interest 327
Interest component of rental expense 74C
Total fixed charges 50,36¢
Preferred Unit distributions 1,25¢
Total fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions $ 51,61¢
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 1.51

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Pferred Unit distributions 1.47



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofivQlof Highwoods Properties, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andifi@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidasubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahoégorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in at@moce with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the RegistsadiSclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls procedures, as of the end of the period coveydtis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iRemnt’s internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regidgs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the Registrant’s internal control over finaheceporting; and

5. The Registrarg’ other certifying officers and | have discloseasdd on our most recent evaluation of internalrobitver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the in@mmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aismgmtfrole in the Registranst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: July 26, 2012

/s/ Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofivQlof Highwoods Properties, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andifi@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidasubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahoégorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in at@moce with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the RegistsadiSclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls procedures, as of the end of the period coveydtis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iRemnt’s internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regidgs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the Registrant’s internal control over finaheceporting; and

5. The Registrarg’ other certifying officers and | have discloseasdd on our most recent evaluation of internalrobitver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the in@mmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aismgmtfrole in the Registranst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: July 26, 2012

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 31.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofvQlof Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerst

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andifi@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidasubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahoégorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in at@moce with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the RegistsadiSclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls procedures, as of the end of the period coveydtis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iRemnt’s internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regidgs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the Registrant’s internal control over finaheceporting; and

5. The Registrarg’ other certifying officers and | have discloseasdd on our most recent evaluation of internalrobitver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the in@mmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aismgmtfrole in the Registranst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: July 26, 2012

/s/ Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Geheratner




Exhibit 31.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofvQlof Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerst

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andifi@ periods presented in this
report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidasubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahoégorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in at@moce with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the RegistsadiSclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls procedures, as of the end of the period coveydtis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iRemnt’s internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regidgs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the Registrant’s internal control over finaheceporting; and

The Registrang’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdd on our most recent evaluation of internalrobotver financizs
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the in@mmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aismgmtfrole in the Registranst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: July 26, 2012

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officetha
General Partner



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsderoperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Qtf@ period endedune 30, 201
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio the date hereof (the “Reportl),Edward J. Fritsch, President and Chief Execi
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 ICS§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of thieaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

/s/ Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer

July 26, 2012




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsderoperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Qtf@ period endedune 30, 201
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio the date hereof (the “Reportl)),Terry L. Stevens, Senior Vice President and €
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuémtl8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to &9@te Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

July 26, 2012




Exhibit 32.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsodealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Pathip”) on Form 109 for the
period ended June 30, 2012 as filed with the Seesirand Exchange Commission on the date hereef“Report”), |, Edward J. Fritscl
President and Chief Executive Officer of Highwod®perties, Inc., general partner of the OperaBaginership, certify, pursuant to
U.S.C. 8§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to 8 906 dbéntbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnership.

/s/ Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Geheratner
July 26, 2012




Exhibit 32.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsodealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Pathip”) on Form 109 for the
period ended June 30, 2012 as filed with the Seesrand Exchange Commission on the date hereef“Report”), |, Terry L. Steven:
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial OfficEHgghwoods Properties, Inc., general partner ef@perating Partnership, certify, purst
to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 8fedsarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnership.

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officeth@ General Partner
July 26, 2012




